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About LG Chem
LG Chem is Korea’s first – and largest vertically integrated – 
chemical company. Founded in 1947, we have emerged as one 
of the world’s top 30 chemical makers over the past six 
decades by consistently delivering petrochemicals, IT & 
electronic materials and energy solution that improve the 
quality of life for people everywhere.

Backed by a growing production, marketing, and R&D 
operations network around the world, LG Chem is now poised 
to make its mark globally. As we continue to transit our 
existing business portfolio to value-added fields, we are 
paying more attention to our IT & Electronic Materials Division, 
a key element of our future growth, as we actively pursue 
opportunities in new materials fields. We believe these 
strategies for growth will power our next step forward, while 
also enhancing our reputation for bringing unique materials 
and solutions to life.
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At LG Chem, we are dedicated to delivering 
greater long-term value to all our stakeholders. 
We seek to maximize this value by focusing on 
the basics: a sound financial structure, solid 
revenue base, and steady growth. We also strive 
to earn your trust and respect by practicing 
corporate responsibility, ethics, and integrity in 
all areas of governance. In this annual report, 
as well as all of our investor-related 
communications, we are committed to 
achieving a more complete and accurate 
standard of reporting.

Thank you once again for your support of 
LG Chem. We look forward to creating greater 
satisfaction and value for you in the coming year.
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Petrochemicals 
Division

business divisions

Distinctive Solutions to Advance Corporate Development 
and Everyday Convenience

NCC/PO  •  With a stable vertical integration of production, LG Chem produces basic feedstock 
such as ethylene and propylene, as well as various high-performance polyethylene and 
polypropylene products—and all based on the world’s highest level of cost competitiveness. 

PVC  •  PVC is a plastic of universal usage that includes sashes, pipes, flooring and other 
construction materials, all of which have a wide range of uses in everyday life. LG Chem 
represents Korea’s largest—and the world’s sixth largest—market share of PVC.

ABS  •  Producing various high-performance acrylonitrile-butadiene-styrene (ABS) materials for 
electric, electronic, and automotive use, LG Chem controls the world’s largest market share of ABS.

EP  •  Engineering plastic materials which are very strong and highly heat-resistant are mainly 
used for the interior of automobiles. LG Chem is keenly responding to the expansion of the 
market, which is the result of vehicle weight reduction. 

Acrylates/Plasticizers  •  In addition to the production of acrylates, which are used as raw 
materials for various other finished products such as super absorbent polymers, paints, and 
adhesives, as well as diverse plasticizers, LG Chem is expanding into the high value-added 
super absorbent polymer business.

Rubber/Specialty Polymers  •  LG Chem produces Korea’s highest quality butadiene-
based synthetic rubber for tires, methacrylate-butadiene-styrene (MBS) impact modifiers, 
styrene-butadiene-styrene (SBS) asphalt modifiers, latexes for paper coating and gloves, and 
bisphenol-A (BPA) for polycarbonate and epoxy resins.
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LG Chem is dedicated to the advancement of corporate development and of everyday convenience by producing and supplying leading 
petrochemicals, IT & electronic materials and energy solution worldwide. With distinctive products and solutions that are the result of years of 
experience and technology development, LG Chem has grown to become a global solutions partner, striving to support the success of customers 
and the advancement of the petrochemicals, information technology & electronic materials and battery industries.

IT & Electronic 
Materials Division

Energy Solution 
Division

Optical Materials  •  LG Chem leads the market with its production of core optical materials 
such as 3D FPR, polarizers and LCD glass substrates. 

Electronic Materials  •  With its advanced technologies in photoresists, strippers for LCDs, 
organic lighting emitting diode(OLED) materials, cathode materials, circuit board materials and 
toners, LG Chem offers differentiated solutions in the electronic materials sector.

IT Films  •  LG Chem produces a number of high-tech films for LCD-BLU (Liquid Crystal Display 
Back Light Unit), touch panels, and solar cells. 

LCD Glass substrates  •  From the second half of 2012, LG Chem began mass production of 
LCD glass substrates, which requires a high level of technical prowess, and is intensively 
fostering the business to produce next-generation engines. 

OLED Lighting  •   OLED lighting is drawing attention as a next-generation light source to 
replace existing lighting. LG Chem possesses the world’s highest level of efficiency and life 
expectancy of lamps, which together measure the performance of OLED lighting. 

Mobile Batteries  •  Based on a high level of productivity and self-developed patented 
technology, LG Chem controls roughly 20 percent of the global market share of mobile batteries. 

Automotive Batteries  •  Having single-handedly supplied batteries for the world’s first 
mass-produced electric vehicle—and securing 10 major automakers around the world as its 
customers—LG Chem is the maker of the world’s top automotive batteries. 

Batteries for Power Storage  •  Based on leading technical prowess and the ability to 
mass produce batteries, packs, and BMS (battery management system), LG Chem is securing 
new customers in various ESS (energy storage system) sectors, including those for electrical 
grids, UPS, and homes. 
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Financial Highlights

TOTAL ASSETS TOTAL LIABILITES TOTAL EQUITY 

Consolidated

(in KRW billions) 

sales 

23,263

1,506

22,676 2,170

2012 20122011

16,581 10,765
5,816

15,286 9,7085,578

2012 201220122011 20112011

2011

OPERATING PROFIT 

2012 

1,910

2,819

2011

NET INCOME 
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Key Figures 

Operating profit margin

Return on equity

Borrowings to equity

Total issued common shares

Earnings per share in won

Stock price in won at year end

Dividend per common share in won 

2011

12.4%

24.7%

26.0%

66,271,100

29,069

317,500

4,000

2012

8.2%

14.7%

27.4%

66,271,100

20,318

330,000

4,000

Trading Volume

2012.01 2012.02 2012.03 2012.04 2012.05 2012.06 2012.07 2012.08 2012.09 2012.10 2012.11 2012.12

 (in shares) 

3,000K

2,500K

2,000K

1,500K

1,000K

500,000

2012.01 2012.02 2012.03 2012.04 2012.05 2012.06 2012.07 2012.08 2012.09 2012.10 2012.11 2012.12

Stock Price 

(in KRW) 

440,000

420,000

400,000

380,000

360,000

340,000

320,000

300,000

280,000

260,000
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Message from the ceo

We shall achieve this recognition not onlyWe shall achieve this recognition not only
within the market, but also among customerswithin the market, but also among customers

around the world.around the world.

“ “
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Dear shareholders and customers,				  

Last year, LG Chem recorded sales of KRW 23.26 trillion, with an 
operating profit of KRW 1.91 trillion. Sales increased by 3 percent 
but operating profit recorded a decrease largely influenced by the 
effects of global recession. Ultimately, sluggish demand and 
declining price of goods were the main reasons of unsatisfactory 
business performance.

Although business results were not as high as expected, all of LG 
Chem’s employees have reinforced our strengths based on a 
responsible management system within each business division. 
Employees have also pledged their full support to the company’s 
future prosperity.

The following represents specific performance of each division in 
details. In order to respond to unstable market situations, the 
Petrochemicals Division intensively fostered core businesses that 
are based on high value-added technology such as SSBR, SAP, 
and metallocene PE. The division also pursued global expansion 
within its major business, including the Kazakhstan complex proj-
ect. 

The IT & Electronic Materials Division firmly maintained its No.1 
status in the global polarizer market and improved profitability by 
expanding high value-added businesses including 3D FPR films. 
Furthermore, plants manufacturing LCD glass substrates and ITO 
films started operating thanks to the investments made in the 
new business industry. 
		
The Energy Solution Division enhanced its unique competitive-
ness by focusing on three core values: differentiated products, 
low-cost materials and high quality products. Moreover, the divi-
sion obtained additional orders of supplying lithium-ion batteries 
to major automotive customers and also successfully entered into 
the Energy Storage System (ESS) market, thus creating funda-
mental bases for future profits.
				  
This year, the business environment is expected to be just as diffi-
cult as it was last year. Even in this challenging business environ-
ment, LG Chem needs to be a leader in the market so it can 

continuously perform with excellent business results. At LG 
Chem, we will do our utmost to achieve this goal.

In order to lead the market, LG Chem will do its best to produce 
high-quality products that exceed customers’ expectations and at 
a far lower cost than our competitors. In addition, LG Chem will 
rapidly respond to changes in the business environment and 
always keep an eye on our competitors. 
	
To ensure a higher speed of decision making and execution, LG 
Chem established a responsible management system for each 
business division in 2012. The company will further intensify and 
develop the system in the future. We will also establish LG’s 
unique way of working, one in which all employees consider cus-
tomer value as the top priority and put themselves in the shoes of 
the customer to genuinely learn what they really want. LG Chem 
will completely eliminate tasks that are irrelevant and instead 
concentrate on the objective of creating customer value until this 
task is fully realized.
	
Through these changes, LG Chem will respond to the business 
environment more rapidly and provide differentiated customer 
value earlier than our competitors, allowing us to become a mar-
ket leader. 
	
Thank you once again for your interest in and relentless support 
of LG Chem throughout the year. Everyone at LG Chem pledges to 
do our best to become a global leading company. 

We shall achieve this recognition not only within the market, but 
also among customers around the world.

We hope for your continued support and encouragement in 2013 
as well. 

Thank you. 			 

President & CEO

Jin Soo Park  
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Since being founded in 1947, LG Chem has become a global petrochemical company that 
has been leading Korea’s petrochemical industry for the last 60 years. The company is re-
inforcing the profitability and growing ability of the existing Petrochemicals Division and, at 
the same time, is expanding its business areas into the fields of displays and clean energy 
through the IT & Electronic Materials Division and Energy Solution Division.

In 2012, the business environment was challenging throughout the year with the continued 
financial crisis in Europe and the delayed recovery of major economic powers such as China 
and the U.S. 

However, LG Chem’s Petrochemicals Division accomplished relatively stable profits com-
pared to its competitors by producing premium products and securing high energy efficien-
cy. LG Chem’s IT & Electronic Materials Division also realized improved profitability over 
the previous year by expanding sales of highly profitable products such as 3D FPR, while 
starting the commercial production of LCD glass substrates, a future growth engine that 
LG Chem has been preparing for quite some time. However, the Energy Solution Division 
recorded somewhat lower-than-expected business results, which was a result of the slow-
down in growth of electric vehicles.

As a result, under IFRS, total sales stood at KRW 23,263 billion, up 2.6 percent from the 
previous year, but with a lower operating income of KRW 1,910 billion, or 32.2 percent lower 
than the previous year, and a net income of KRW 1,506 billion, down 30.6 percent from the 
previous year.

Business results by division are as follows: 

LG Chem’s Petrochemicals Division recorded lower business results than the previous 
year, a result of lower demand from major markets, including China, as well as a rise in 
the prices of raw materials. However, by expanding facilities for premium products such as 
synthetic rubber, acrylates, and SAP, and improving energy efficiency and productivity, LG 
Chem maintained solid profitability relative to global competitors. The Petrochemicals Divi-
sion recorded sales of KRW 17,579 billion in 2012, and an operating income of KRW 1,436 
billion, a 38.3 percent decrease from the previous year, though the ratio of operating income 
to sales stood at 8.2 percent, a relatively solid level of profitability. 

The IT & Electronic Materials Division recorded sales of KRW 3,452 billion, which was simi-
lar to the previous year’s figure, due to markets which had recovered slightly for LCDs, the 
company’s downstream business. The division recorded an operating income of KRW 436 
billion, a 16.4 percent increase over the previous year as it continued to improve the product 
mix and to reduce costs by expanding sales of highly profitable products, such as 3D FPR 
that are unique from other companies, and increasing the application of acrylic film to po-
larizers.

The Energy Solution Division recorded sales of KRW 2,479 billion, up 9.3 percent from the 
previous year, and an operating income of KRW 39 billion, a decrease of 67.0 percent. This 
was due to the somewhat poor performance of mobile battery sales, which was the result 
of lower demand for laptop computers, and the initial costs—including investments—in the 

2012 Overview

13.9%

13.3%

divisional sales
 petrochemicals
 IT & electronic materials
 Energy Solution

 petrochemicals
 IT & electronic materials
 Energy Solution

divisional operating profit

14.1%

10.0%

4.1%

22.8%

10.6%

2.0%

75.3%

75.2%

76.1%

82.6%

2012

2012

2011

2011
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automotive battery business, even though customer companies’ sales of electric vehicles 
increased.

Still, LG Chem is working hard to secure future growth engines for long-term growth de-
spite the challenging business environment. As a result of such efforts, LG Chem’s automo-
tive battery business firmly established its status as a market leader by securing over 10 
global automaker clients, including GM, Hyundai-Kia, Renault, Ford, and Volvo. The com-
pany also started the commercial production of LCD glass substrates on line No. 1 in the 
fourth quarter of 2012. LCD glass substrates are the core material for display panels, and 
LG Chem plans to add two more production lines so that the business can remain stable.

As part of such efforts, LG Chem invested approximately KRW 2.1 trillion, which included 
KRW 1 trillion for the Petrochemicals Division, KRW 332 billion for the IT & Electronic Ma-
terials Division, KRW 533 billion for the Energy Solution Division, and KRW 201 billion for 
common expenses. In 2013, the company will continue to invest in expanding facilities to 
reinforce the competitiveness of existing businesses and to secure future growth engines. 

LG Chem will continue to innovate its products with the best technology and productivity—a 
key part of the company’s competitiveness—as it grows into a global leading company in all 
business divisions: Petrochemicals, IT & Electronic Materials, and Energy Solution. 

Shareholder composition 
(Common Stock)

	LG  Corp.
	 Korean Individuals & Institutions
	 Foreign Shareholders

30.86%

33.50%

33.53%

33.53%

35.61%

32.97%

2012

2011
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
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Financial Structure
LG Chem’s operating income decreased by over 30 percent in 2012 compared to the previ-
ous year due to a difficult business environment. For the same reason, as of the end of 2012, 
the borrowings ratio on a consolidated base stood at 27.4 percent, a 1.4 percentage point 
increase from 2011. However, the total liability to equity ratio improved by 3.5 percentage 
points, and was brought down to 54.0 percent in 2012. In 2013, plans are in place to invest in 
the expansion of facilities for petrochemicals, such as highly profitable SSBR, 3D FPR in the 
IT & Electronic Materials Division, and polymer batteries in the Energy Solution Division in 
order to secure continuous growth engines.  

LG Chem will make sound investments with its cash flow created through business activi-
ties, and continue to improve its financial structure by improving business results and ef-
ficiently managing operating funds.

Financial Information

Total liability to Equity ratio (%)

57.5

2011

Borrowings to Equity ratio (%)

26.0

2011

54.0

2012

27.4

2012

Debt to equity (%)

Inverest coverage multiple (X)

Return on assets (%)

Return on equity (%)

 2011

26.0

42.0 

15.5

24.7

 2012

27.4

25.7 

9.5

14.7

Major Financial Indicators  

 

Common stock

Preferred stock

Total

Foreign Investors

Holdings (%)

35.61 

40.13 

36.08 

Total Issued Shares 

66,271,100 

7,628,921 

73,900,021 

Paid-in Capital

(in KRW billions)

331.4

38.1

369.5

Stock Info	 (as of Dec. 31, 2012) 

10

30

50

70

90

15

20

25

30

35

Equity 
As of December 31, 2012, 33.53 percent of LG Chem’s common stock was owned by LG 
Corp., while 35.61 percent was owned by foreigners and 30.86 percent was owned by do-
mestic organizations and individuals.

Funding Strategy
Liquidity Risk Management - In principle, LG Chem raises funds for capital expenditures 
from long-term loans and for working capital from short-term loans. 

Interest Rate Risk Management - An appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate loans is used 
to flexibly respond to fluctuating interest rates. By using interest derivatives, LG Chem is 
able to partially hedge against risks associated with interest rates. In addition, the company 
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is able to keep its loan interest rate at a low figure of approximately 2.5 percent based on LG 
Chem’s excellent credit rating.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management - In principle, LG Chem keeps a certain level of foreign 
currency loans, which helps serve as a natural hedge against foreign exchange exposure. In 
2013, the company is forecast to have a net exposure surplus of USD 6 billion. At the same 
time, the company will maintain its foreign currency loans at USD 1 billion. 

Dividend & Dividend Policy
LG Chem considers dividends to be the foremost means of returning profits to its share-
holders. As a result, the company takes various factors into account when determining the 
company’s dividends policy, including profit returns, sufficiency of capital resources for se-
curing future growth, and financial soundness.

In fiscal 2012, LG Chem paid annual cash dividends on its common stock of KRW 4,000 won 
(80 percent of face value) per share, as well as KRW 4,050 won (81 percent of face value) per 
share on its preferred stock, the same amount as the previous year.  

Based on 2012 earnings, the determinants of dividend payouts included investments in fos-
tering LG Chem’s business competitiveness and future growth.

To continuously increase shareholder value, the company is planning to maintain a level 
of dividends which can help improve its internal financial structure and shareholders’ de-
mands for dividends. This will be accomplished by securing competitiveness in its core busi-
nesses and generating stable profits. 

Return on Asset (%)

Return on Equity (%)

9.5

2012

15.5

2011

14.7

2012

24.7

2011

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Interest expense

Interest rate  

(annual borrowings rate)

Change

5.9 

-0.2%p 

2012

73.0

2.55% 

2011

67.1

2.75% 

Interest Expense	 (in KRW billions)

Korean won

Foreign currency

Total

Change

+337 

+83 

+420

Dec. 2012

812 

2,135 

2,947 

Dec. 2011

475 

2,052 

2,527 

Borrowing by Currency	 (in KRW billions) 5

10

15

20

25

10

15

20

25

30



12

20

40

60

80

100

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

LG Chem Annual Report 2012

EPS (in KRW)

2011

29,069

14.7

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

2011

20,318

21.0

2012

2012

Financial Information

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

5

10

15

20

25

Net Income (in KRW millions)

EPS (in KRW)

Total Dividends (in KRW millions)

Dividend Payput Ratio (%)

DPO at face, Common (%)

DPO at face, Preferred (%)

Dividend Yield Ratio, Common (%)

Dividend Yield Ratio, Preferred (%)

2012

1,506,345 

20,318 

316,159 

21.0

80

81

1.21

3.97 

2011

 2,169,670 

29,069 

318,645 

14.7

80

81

1.26

3.77

Dividend Summary

Capital Expenditures
In 2012, LG Chem’s total investments amounted to approximately KRW 2.1 trillion on a 
consolidated basis. The company continued readjusting its business portfolio in the Petro-
chemicals Division, with major investments in expanding the production capacity of highly 
profitable products such as acrylates, SAP, and High EVA. Including investments in LCD 
glass substrates and 3D FPR in the IT & Electronic Materials Division, and polymer batteries 
and automotive batteries in the Energy Solution Division, approximately KRW 1.4 trillion was 
invested in new production and expansion of products. 

In 2013, LG Chem will channel resources into expanding its existing businesses and secur-
ing future growth engines to follow through on its goal of becoming a global leading com-
pany. In the Petrochemicals Division, investments are scheduled to be made mainly in spe-
cialty products like SSBR and High EVA. The IT & Electronic Materials Division also plans to 
invest in 3D FPR and LCD glass substrates, while the Energy Solution Division will invest in 
polymer batteries, where demand is increasing. 

Despite uncertainties in the business environment, LG Chem will continue to make future-
oriented investments based on the stable cash flow generated from solid business results. 
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2013 Outlook
In 2013, there is much uncertainty in the global economy. Despite this fact, the company will 
increase profitability by reinforcing the competitiveness of existing businesses and maintain 
growth in new businesses. 

The Petrochemicals Division will increase the importance of premium products such as 
metallocene-based PE in its business structure and continue to expand production, while 
focusing on highly profitable products such as synthetic rubber. The division will also maxi-
mize its ability to bring about profits in 2013 by improving energy efficiency through the 
highest level of facility operations. 

The IT & Electronic Materials Division will reinforce its market dominance of existing busi-
nesses and continuously release new products such as 3D FPR, ITO films and OLED lighting, 
as it continues to lead the market. In addition, the division will increase the productivity of 
LCD glass substrates production on line No. 1 and invest in two more lines so that the busi-
ness can attain economies of scale as soon as possible. 

With the Energy Solution Division, it will firmly establish its customer share of mobile bat-
teries based on the expansion of products as it responds to the increasing demand for new 
mobile devices such as smartphones and ultrabooks, while increasing the number of ap-
plications for mobile batteries used with electric tools, for example. The automotive bat-
tery business is expected to continuously grow with expanding sales of electronic vehicles 
through client companies such as GM, Hyundai-Kia, and Renault. 

LG Chem will continue to concentrate on R&D and secure global competitiveness in both 
existing core businesses and new businesses. LG Chem will rapidly grow as a global leading 
company by continuously ensuring excellent performance based on its past experience. 
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In 2012, the difficult business environment continued with the 
delayed recovery of the global economy and continued financial cri-
sis in the Euro-Zone, just as it had in the previous year. As a result, 
LG Chem recorded sales of KRW 23,263 billion, up 2.6 percent from 
the previous year, but with a lower operating income of KRW 1,910 
billion, or 32.2 percent lower than the previous year on a consolidat-
ed basis. However, LG Chem was able to lay the firm foundation as a 
global leading company by achieving stable business results 
because of a differentiated business structure and strong competi-
tiveness compared to the company’s competitors.  

LG Chem’s Petrochemicals Division has the highest level of capabil-
ities when it comes to operating facilities. This is evident in the fact 
that the company was ranked No. 1 in the energy efficiency of the 
competitiveness survey conducted by Solomon Associates, which 
looked at 115 international NCC companies. The division is also 
maintaining stable, high profitability compared to our competitors, 
with our product portfolio focusing on highly profitable products. 
The IT & Electronic Materials Division is also securing high levels of 

profitability by reinforcing existing core businesses, while releasing 
new products according to changes in the market. In the automotive 
battery business—a future growth engine—LG Chem is expanding 
our firm market governance, doing our utmost to become a leading 
company with global competitiveness. 

Despite the global economic slowdown, LG Chem is not ceasing to 
make investments, but is reinforcing existing core businesses in all 
divisions. In addition, the company has continued to invest in new 
growth engines, such as automotive batteries and LCD glass sub-
strates. 

In the Petrochemicals Division, LG Chem is conducting an ethane 
cracker project in Kazakhstan to improve cost competitiveness, 
while expanding facilities for highly profitable products, such as syn-
thetic rubbers, acrylates, and SAP. In the IT & Electronic Materials 
Division, we established firm market governance through the 
expansion of facilities for 3D FPR, which LG Chem released for the 
first time in the world. The Energy Solution Division also laid a solid 

Message from the cFo

LG Chem will growLG Chem will grow
closer to investors throughcloser to investors through

transparent financialtransparent financial
management, and activemanagement, and active

communication withcommunication with
investors in investors in 

Korea and abroad.       Korea and abroad.       

“
“
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President & CFO

Suk-Jeh Cho

Message from the cFO

foundation for business by quickly responding to the release of elec-
tronic vehicles and hybrid vehicles from customers such as GM and 
the Hyundai-Kia Automotive Group.   

Thus, 2012 was a year when the CFO’s unit was given a very signifi-
cant task, which was to examine investments in a rapid and precise 
way, while also minimizing risks regarding market uncertainty. Still, 
in 2013, global economic volatility remains high. 

As LG Chem’s CFO, I will maximize support for all business divisions 
so that we can minimize performance volatility and maximize our 
ability in creating profits with existing businesses. At the same time, 
we expect to see tangible results in new businesses such as LCD 
glass substrates and automotive batteries in the very near future. 

Also, I will do my best to maintain financial stability that can create a 
synergistic effect with our businesses and to manage risks. To 
accomplish this, I will concentrate on the following:  

First, with increasing global economic uncertainty, it is becoming 
more important for a company to manage working capital in order to 
maintain a solid financial structure together with external growth. 
LG Chem will continue to keep cash flow stable by making invest-
ments based on profitability, just as we have done up to now. In addi-
tion, we will further improve our financial structure. 

Although LG Chem’s operating income decreased by over 30 per-
cent in 2012 compared to the previous year due to a difficult busi-
ness environment, we controlled the timing of investments in 
responding to the business environment and effectively managed 
our finances. As a result, the borrowings ratio stood at 27.4 percent, 
a 1.4 percentage point increase from 2011. However, total liability to 
equity ratio improved by 3.5 percentage points and decreased to 54.0 
percent in 2012. 

Second, LG Chem is continuing with its investments in order to rein-
force existing businesses and to secure future growth engines. We 
will continue to choose our investments wisely after thoroughly veri-
fying the priority and feasibility of investments so that the majority of 
investments will be made within the cash flow created through our 
business activities. 

With continued investments, LG Chem was able to start production 
of LCD glass substrates at production line No.1 in 2012, and to 
expand sales of highly profitable 3D FPR. In 2013, plans are in place 
for many investments in the IT & Electronic Materials Division and 
Energy Solution Division. Examples of this include the expansion of 
facilities for 3D FPR, ITO film, and polymer batteries. This is so that 
we can improve the company’s business portfolio. In the 
Petrochemicals Division, we expanded facilities for highly profitable 
products such as acrylates and SAP in 2012, and in 2013 we will 
reinforce our unique competitiveness by producing highly profitable 
products such as SSBR and High EVA. However, we are planning to 

make a smaller investment in automotive batteries based on busi-
ness results and the overall business environment outlook in 2013. 

Total investment will be about KRW 2.1 trillion in 2013, which is sim-
ilar to the previous year’s figure. Although a large investment like 
this might seem a little risky given the current uncertain business 
environment, our plan was made in consideration of our cash flow, 
which will largely contribute to the company’s long-term growth. 

Third, with the rapidly expanding scope of business, LG Chem 
launched a new Energy Solution Division in 2012 in addition to the 
existing Petrochemicals Division and IT & Electronic Materials 
Division, which are independently responsible for each division’s 
business. As the CFO, I will continue to improve internal risk man-
agement capability of each division’s consistent growth with stability. 

Furthermore, we will do our utmost to minimize risks in managing 
funds, bonds, and insurance by reinforcing the systematic monitor-
ing of businesses for overseas projects, such as automotive batteries 
and ethane crackers in Kazakhstan, which are increasing each year. 

Lastly, we will make further efforts to maximize shareholder value. 
Last year, LG Chem maintained dividends of 4,000 won for ordinary 
shares and 4,050 won for preferred shares by focusing on share-
holder value, despite the decrease in business results due to the 
delayed recovery in the global economy. We also pulled ahead from 
our competitors by reinforcing existing core businesses, and gained 
a foothold for growth by continuously preparing future growth 
engines such as automotive batteries and LCD glass substrates. 

There are still many uncertainties in the global economy. This 
includes uncertainties in the economic recovery of advanced coun-
tries and the improvement of the Chinese economy, as well as FX 
rate volatility. Nonetheless, LG Chem will pursue continued growth 
with profitability based on our competitiveness in core businesses. 

At LG Chem, every employee, including top management, is working 
hard to increase shareholder value so that you can invest in our 
company with confidence. As part of this effort, we introduced IFRS 
earlier in 2010 to provide you with useful, transparent financial 
information, and we are now establishing/operating an internal con-
trol system. In 2013, LG Chem will grow closer to investors through 
transparent financial management, active communication with 
investors in Korea and abroad, and continuous IR activities.  
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of LG Chem, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of LG Chem, Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively 
the “Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, expressed in Korean won. These consolidated financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial state-
ments based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Ningbo LG Yongxing Chemical Co., Ltd. and certain other 
consolidated subsidiaries, whose financial statements represent 18% of the Company’s consolidated total assets as of December 
31, 2012 (2011: 19%), and represent 19% of the Company’s consolidated total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011: 
19%). These financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included for these subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of mate-
rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of the other auditors pro-
vide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred to above pres-
ent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of LG Chem, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and 
their financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as adopted by the Republic of Korea (“Korean IFRS”).

Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the Republic of 
Korea to audit such consolidated financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. 
Accordingly, this report is for use by those who are informed about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.

This report is effective as of March 7, 2013, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the 
time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. Accordingly, the readers of the 
audit report should understand that there is a possibility that the above audit report may have to be revised to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circum-
stances, if any.

 

Seoul, Korea
March 7, 2013

Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers, 

LS Yongsan Tower, 191, Hangangno 2-ga, Yongsan-gu, 

Seoul 140-702, Korea (Yongsan P.O Box 266, 140-600), 

www.samil.com
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December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions of Korean won)

Assets		

Current assets

	C ash and cash equivalents

	T rade receivables

	O ther receivables

	 Prepaid income taxes 

	O ther financial assets

	O ther current assets

	I nventories

		T  otal current assets

Non-current assets

	O ther receivables

	O ther financial assets

	I nvestments in associates and joint ventures

	 Deferred income tax assets

	 Property, plant and equipment

	I ntangible assets

	O ther non-current assets

		T  otal non-current assets

Total assets

					   

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities	

Current liabilities

	T rade payables

	O ther payables

	 Borrowings

	O ther financial liabilities

	 Provisions

	C urrent income tax liabilities

	O ther current liabilities

		T  otal current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

	O ther payables

	 Borrowings

	O ther financial liabilities

	 Provisions

	 Defined benefit liability

	 Deferred income tax liabilities

		T  otal non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

2012

￦	 720,767

3,131,051

772,746

7,314

2,352

190,778

2,627,930

￦	 7,452,938

20,718

21,811

405,068

57,525

8,348,178

233,893

41,022

9,128,215

￦	 16,581,153

1,522,395

766,231

1,751,781

154

1,943

142,901

152,607

￦	 4,338,012

15,070

1,195,126

- 

11,263

105,901

150,426

1,477,786

￦	 5,815,798

2011

￦	 1,379,379

3,117,239

133,915

17,848

-

132,598

2,475,233

￦	 7,256,212

33,657

5,973

328,408

32,211

7,375,955

207,172

45,966

8,029,342

￦	 15,285,554

1,503,106

950,168

1,837,637

536

7,229

289,460

135,768

￦	 4,723,904

41,329

689,081

146

2,314

60,777

60,324

853,971

￦	 5,577,875

Notes

3, 5, 6

3, 5, 7, 33

3, 5, 7, 33

3, 5, 8, 10

15

11

3, 5, 7

3, 5, 8, 9

1, 12, 35

30

13

14

15

3, 5, 33

3, 5, 33

3, 5, 16

3, 5, 8, 10

17

30

5, 19

3,5

3,5,16

3, 5, 8, 10

17

18

30

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions of Korean won)

Equity		

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

	S hare capital

	C apital surplus

	O ther components of equity

	A ccumulated other comprehensive income

	R etained earnings

					   

Non-controlling interests 

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

2012

￦	 369,500

1,157,772

(15,699)

(86,977)

￦	 9,204,703

10,629,299

136,056

10,765,355
￦	 16,581,153

2011

￦	 369,500

1,157,772

(15,699)

(11,398)

￦	 8,053,307

9,553,482

154,197

9,707,679
￦	 15,285,554

Notes

1, 21

23

22

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

(in millions of Korean won, except per share amounts)

Revenue		

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 	

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

Operating profit		

Finance income 

Finance expenses 

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures

Other non-operating income

Other non-operating expenses			 

Profit before income tax 

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to: 

	O wners of the parent

	N on-controlling interests			 

Earnings per share for profit attributable 

	 to owners of the parent (in won)

	 Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share

		  for profit for the year

	 Basic and diluted earnings per preferred share

		  for profit for the year

2012
￦	 23,263,019

(19,955,076)

3,307,943
￦	 (1,397,620)

1,910,323

99,990

(153,938)

12,420

371,853

(360,150)

1,880,498

(374,153)
￦	 1,506,345

1,494,487 

11,858 

20,318

￦	 20,368

	

2011
￦	 22,675,593

(18,594,862)

4,080,731
￦	 (1,261,973)

2,818,758

194,859

(217,909)

15,266

452,744

(467,120)

2,796,598

(626,928)
￦	 2,169,670

2,137,926 

31,744 

29,069

￦	 29,118

	

Notes

33, 35

25,33

24, 25, 33

35

5, 27, 35

5, 27, 35

12, 35

5, 28, 35

5, 29, 35

34, 35

30

31

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income	

(in millions of Korean won)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

	A ctuarial loss on defined benefit liability

	C urrency translation differences

	C ash flow hedges

	O thers	

	I ncome tax effect relating to components of 

 		  other comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:

	O wners of the parent

	N on-controlling interests

2012
￦	 1,506,345

(62,237)

(74,458)

527

(9,853)

￦	 15,261

	

￦		  (130,760)
￦	 1,375,585 

1,371,658

￦	 3,927

2011
￦	 2,169,670

(53,541)

49,572

4,682

5,658

￦	 11,680 

￦	 18,051
￦	 2,187,721 

2,147,961

￦	 39,760

Notes

18

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(in millions of Korean won)

￦	7,843,835

2,169,670

(40,584) 

49,248 

3,735

5,652

2,187,721

(319,745)

(4,132)

(323,877)
￦	9,707,679
￦	9,707,679

1,506,345

(47,175) 

(74,173) 

399

(9,811)

1,375,585

(316,147)

(1,762)

(317,909)
￦	10,765,355

￦	 140,362

31,744

- 

 

8,016 

- 

- 

39,760

(25,225)

(700)

(25,925)
￦	 154,197
￦	 154,197

11,858

- 

(7,931) 

-

-

3,927

(21,627)

(441)

(22,068)
￦	 136,056

￦	  7,703,473

2,137,926

(40,584) 

41,232 

3,735

5,652

2,147,961

(294,520)

(3,432)

(297,952)
￦	9,553,482
￦	9,553,482

1,494,487

(47,175) 

(66,242) 

399

(9,811)

1,371,658

(294,520)

(1,321)

(295,841)
￦	10,629,299

￦	6,253,917

2,137,926

(40,584) 

-  

- 

- 

2,097,342

(294,520)

(3,432)

(297,952)
￦	8,053,307
￦	8,053,307

1,494,487

(47,175) 

- 

-

(75)

1,447,237

(294,520)

(1,321)

(295,841)
￦	9,204,703

￦	 (62,017)

-

- 

41,232 

3,735

5,652

50,619

- 

- 

- 
￦	 (11,398)
￦	 (11,398)

-

- 

(66,242) 

399

(9,736)

(75,579)

-

-

-
￦	 (86,977)

￦	 (15,699)

- 

- 

 

-  

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
￦	 (15,699)
￦	 (15,699)

-

- 

- 

-

-

-

-

-

-
￦	 (15,699)

￦	1,157,772

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
￦	1,157,772
￦	1,157,772

-

- 

- 

-

-

-

-

-

-
￦	1,157,772

￦	 369,500

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
￦	 369,500
￦	 369,500

-

- 

- 

-

-

-

-

-

-
￦	 369,500

18 

 

32

18 

 

32

Balance at January 1, 2011

Comprehensive income:

	 Profit for the year

	A ctuarial loss on defined

				    benefit liability

	�C urrency translation 	

	 differences

	C ash flow hedges

	O thers

Total comprehensive income 

	

Transactions with owners: 

	 Dividends 

	O thers

Total transactions with owners 

Balance at December 31, 2011

Balance at January 1, 2012

Comprehensive income:

	 Profit for the year

	A ctuarial loss on defined

			   benefit liability

	�C urrency translation 

	 differences

	C ash flow hedges

	O thers

Total comprehensive income 

	

Transactions with owners: 

	 Dividends 

	O thers

Total transactions with owners 

Balance at December 31, 2012

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Total

equity

Non-

controlling

interests

TotalRetained 

earnings

Accumulated

other

comprehen-

sive income 

Other 

components

of equity

Capital 

surplus

Share

capital

Notes

Attributable to owners of the parent
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(in millions of Korean won)

Cash flows from operating activities

	C ash generated from operations

	I nterest received

	I nterest paid	

	 Dividends received

	I ncome taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities		

Cash flows from investing activities

	 Decrease in other receivables

	 Decrease in non-current other receivables

	 Decrease in non-current other financial assets

	 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

	 Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

	I ncrease in other receivables

	I ncrease in non-current other receivables

	I ncrease in non-current other financial assets

	A cquisition of investments in associates and joint ventures

	A cquisition of property, plant and equipment

	A cquisition of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities		

Cash flows from financing activities

	 Proceeds from borrowings

	R epayments of borrowings

	 Dividends paid

	 Payment on settlement of derivatives

Net cash provided by financing activities		

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

	C ash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

	E xchange losses on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

2012

￦	 2,270,359

25,699

(99,505)

1,560

(432,404)

￦	 1,765,709

178,411

381

- 

9,267

1,999

(812,724)

- 

(15,850)

(75,565)

(1,907,427)

(33,100)

￦	 (2,654,608)

1,013,942

(451,684)

(316,159)

- 

￦	 246,099

(642,800)

1,379,379

(15,812)

￦	 720,767

2011

￦	 2,985,906

29,185

(88,036)

1,860

(688,576)

￦	 2,240,339

103,562

12,651

13

4,917

- 

(110,591)

(25,297)

(1,817)

(41,381)

(2,195,418)

(27,089)

￦	 (2,280,450)

1,376,356

(987,321)

(318,645)

(7,378)

￦	 63,012

22,901

1,368,034

(11,556)

￦	 1,379,379

Notes

	

34

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, 2012 and 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  General information

General information about LG Chem, Ltd. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Company”) is as follows:

1.1 The Parent Company

The Parent Company was spun off on April 1, 2001, from LG Chem Investment Ltd. (formerly LG Chemical Ltd.), to engage in the 
petrochemicals, industrial materials, and information and electronic materials business. It completed its registration process 
on April 3, 2001. The Parent Company’s shares have been listed on the Korea Stock Exchange since April 25, 2001.

The Parent Company merged with LG Daesan Petrochemical Ltd. on January 1, 2006, and with LG Petrochemical Co., Ltd. on 
November 1, 2007. The Parent Company also spun off its Industrial Materials segment to LG Hausys, Ltd. on April 1, 2009, and 
merged with LG Polycarbonate Ltd. on April 1, 2011.

As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has its manufacturing facilities in Yeosu, Daesan, Ochang, Cheongju, Ulsan, 
Naju, Iksan, Paju and Gimcheon.

The Parent Company is authorized to issue 292 million shares of ordinary shares with par value of ￦5,000 per share. As of 
December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has issued 66,271,100 ordinary shares (￦331,356 million) and 7,628,921 preferred 
shares (￦38,144 million). The largest shareholder of the Parent Company is LG Corp., which owns 33.53% of the Parent 
Company’s ordinary shares. Preferred shareholders have no voting rights but are entitled to receive dividends at a rate 1% 
more than those paid to ordinary shareholders.

1.2 Business overview

The Company is engaged in petrochemicals business, information and electronic materials, and batteries business. The petro-
chemical business includes production of olefin petrochemicals such as ethylene, propylene, butadiene from Naphtha and aro-
matic petrochemicals such as benzene, xylene, toluene, and production of synthetic resin, synthetic rubber, and synthetic 
components from olefin and aromatic petrochemicals. This business is regarded as important as it provides primary materials 
to other industries and bears characteristics of large-volume process industry. The Company’s major products are ethylene, 
polyethylene, propylene, synthetic rubber, polyvinyl chloride (PVC), plasticizer, acrylate, acrylonitrile-butadiene-styrene (ABS), 
epoxy resin, and others.

The information and electronic materials business manufactures and supplies electronic materials such as optical material 
including 3D FPR, sensitized material, OLED-related materials and PCB materials. The Company is also preparing the mass 
production of Liquid Crystal Display Glass based on the source technology licensed from SCHOTT Solar, Inc., a Germany-based 
company, combining with its high-quality production techniques.

The batteries business manufactures and supplies batteries ranging from small batteries for portable media devices such as 
laptop computers, camcorders, mobiles and PDA to battery for electric vehicles and batteries for energy storage system. 
Currently, the battery division for electronic vehicles is in its position to supply or get ready to supply to major domestic/foreign 
car manufacturing companies. To maintain its dominant position in the North American battery market, the Company is cur-
rently constructing new manufacturing facilities in North America which will manufacture batteries for hybrid electric vehicle/ 
electric vehicle.
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December 31, 2012 and 2011

1.3 Consolidated subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated subsidiaries

Tianjin LG Dagu Chemical Co.,Ltd.

Ningbo LG Yongxing Chemical Co.,Ltd.
1

LG Chem HK Ltd.

LG Chem America, Inc.

LG Chemical India Pvt. Ltd. 
2

LG Polymer India Pvt. Ltd. 
2

LG Chemical (Guangzhou) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Nanjing) Information & Electronics Materials Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem (Taiwan), Ltd.

LG Chem Display Materials (Beijing) Co.,Ltd.

Tianjin LG Bohai Chemical Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (China) Investment Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Tianjin) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem Europe GmbH

LG Chem Poland Sp. z.o.o

LG Chem Michigan Inc. 

LG Chem Power Inc.

Tianjin LG Botian Chemical Co.,Ltd.

Ningbo Zhenhai LG Yongxing trade Co.,Ltd. 
1

Associates and Joint ventures

LG Vina Chemical Co.,Ltd.

HL Greenpower Co.,Ltd. 

LG Holdings (HK) Ltd.

TECWIN Co.,Ltd. 

SEETEC Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem Brasil INTERMEDICAO DE NEGOCIOS DO SETOR 	

	 QUIMICO LTDA.
 3

CNOOC & LG Petrochemicals Co.,Ltd.

KLPE Limited Liability Partnership 
4

December 31, 2012

 

Business activities

PVC manufacturing and sales

ABS/SBL manufacturing and sales

Sales and trading

Sales and trading

Syntetic resins manufacturing and sales

PS manufacturing

EP manufacturing and sales

Battery/Polarizer Manufacturing and 

sales

Polarizer manufacturing and sales

Polarizer manufacturing

VCM, EDC manufacturing and sales

China holding company

ABS/EP manufacturing and sales

Sales and trading

Polarizer manufacturing

Medium&Large sized battery

research and manufacturing

Medium&Large sized battery research

SBS manufacturing and sales

ABS sales

DOP production and sales

Battery manufacturing for electric 

automobile

Sales and trading

Environment solution and

Construction of chemical plant

Plant utility and Distribution,

research assistance service

Sales and trading

ABS manufacturing and sales

PE manufacturing and sales

 

 

Percentage of 

ownership (%)

75

75

100

100

100

100

100

100 

100

100

75

100

100

100

100

100 

100

56

100

40

49 

26

20 

50 

100 

50

50

 

Business 

location

China

China

Hong Kong

USA

India

India

China

China 

Taiwan

China

China

China

China

Germany

Poland

USA 

USA

China

China

Vietnam

Korea 

Hong Kong

Korea 

Korea 

Brazil 

China

Kazakhstan

 

Fiscal

year-end

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31 

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31 

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31 

December 31

December 31 

December 31 

December 31 

December 31

December 31
1�
As of December 31, 2012, Ningbo LG Yongxing Chemical Co.,Ltd. owns 100% of Ningbo Zhenhai LG Yongxing Trade Co.,Ltd. shares. During the year, the Company disposed 

all of LG Yongxing International Trading Co.,Ltd. shares.
2
As of December 31, 2012, LG Chemical India Pvt. Ltd. owns 100% of LG Polymer India Pvt. Ltd. shares.

3 
Classified as an investment in associate due to its small scale.

4 
During the year, Ammonia Production and Distribution Limited Liability Partnership changed its name to KLPE Limited Liability Partnership.
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1.4 Summarized financial information of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Summarized financial information(before elimination of intercompany transactions) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 
is as follows:

(in millions of Korean won)

Consolidated subsidiaries

Tianjin LG Dagu Chemical Co.,Ltd. 

Ningbo LG Yongxing Chemical Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem HK Ltd.

LG Chem America, Inc. 

LG Chemical India Pvt. Ltd. 

LG Polymer India Pvt. Ltd. 

LG Chemical (Guangzhou) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem (Nanjing) Information & Electronics Materials Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem (Taiwan), Ltd. 

LG Chem Display Materials (Beijing) Co.,Ltd. 

Tianjin LG Bohai Chemical Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem (China) Investment Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Tianjin) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem Europe GmbH

LG Chem Poland Sp. z.o.o 

LG Chem Michigan Inc.

LG Chem Power Inc.

Tianjin LG Botian Chemical Co.,Ltd.

Ningbo Zhenhai LG Yongxing trade Co.,Ltd.

Associates and joint ventures 

LG Vina chemical Co.,Ltd.

HL Greenpower Co.,Ltd. 

LG Holdings (HK) Ltd.

TECWIN Co.,Ltd. 

SEETEC Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem Brasil INTERMEDICAO DE NEGOCIOS DO SETOR 	

	 QUIMICO LTDA.

CNOOC & LG Petrochemicals Co.,Ltd. 

KLPE Limited Liability Partnership

 

 

Assets 

206,570 

753,128 

150,860 

124,318 

32,577 

89,400 

81,606 

1,158,794 

153,824 

22,583 

397,646 

86,121 

76,712 

57,335 

30,400 

163,941 

15,673 

83,719 

2,356 

26,357 

93,676 

374,780 

51,890 

373,833 

361  

90,572 

141,258

 

 

Liabilities 

125,990 

426,398 

136,736 

113,329 

117 

40,331 

43,177 

706,676 

97,504 

1,756 

177,923 

7,130 

44,679 

46,442 

16,392 

122,925 

15,599 

86,961 

1,025 

17,169 

61,925 

151,013 

24,790 

40,532 

217  

12,085 

485

 

 

Equity 

80,580 

326,730 

14,124 

10,989 

32,460 

49,069 

38,429 

452,118 

56,320 

20,827 

219,723 

78,991 

32,033 

10,893 

14,008 

41,016 

74 

(3,242)

1,331 

9,188 

31,751 

223,767 

27,100 

333,301 

144 

 

78,487 

140,773

 

 

Revenue 

423,628 

1,862,728 

615,340 

576,090 

1,824 

214,108 

145,145 

1,587,822 

308,017 

15,885 

484,948 

32,005 

113,645 

159,585 

32,455 

- 

21,684 

162,216 

14,272 

80,224 

107,647 

40,267 

99,792 

488,218 

1,375 

 

- 

-

 

 

Profit(loss) 

for the year

(6,292)

56,436 

1,453 

2,233 

134 

6,545 

4,134 

38,334 

6,777 

1,710 

11,862 

4,067 

4,474 

3,470 

(3,199)

(8,554)

(2,227)

(10,235)

150 

3,271 

2,686 

8,454 

3,780 

12,436 

55 

 

(1,260)

(1,792)

December 31, 2012
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(in millions of Korean won)

Consolidated subsidiaries

Tianjin LG Dagu Chemical Co.,Ltd.

Ningbo LG Yongxing Chemical Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem HK Ltd.

LG Chem America, Inc.

LG Chemical India Pvt. Ltd.

LG Polymer India Pvt. Ltd.

LG Chemical (Guangzhou) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Nanjing) Information & Electronics Materials 		

	C o.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Taiwan), Ltd.

LG Chem Display Materials (Beijing) Co.,Ltd.

Tianjin LG Bohai Chemical Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (China) Investment Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem (Tianjin) Engineering Plastics Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem Europe GmbH

LG Chem Poland Sp. z.o.o

LG Chem Michigan Inc.

LG Chem Power Inc.

Tianjin LG Botian Chemical Co.,Ltd.

Ningbo Zhenhai LG Yongxing trade Co.,Ltd.

Associates and joint ventures

LG Vina chemical Co.,Ltd

HL Greenpower Co.,Ltd.

LG Holdings (HK) Ltd.

TECWIN Co.,Ltd.

SEETEC Co.,Ltd.

LG Chem Brasil INTERMEDICAO DE NEGOCIOS DO SETOR 	

	 QUIMICO LTDA.

LG Yongxing International Trading Co.,Ltd

CNOOC & LG Petrochemicals Co.,Ltd. 

KLPE Limited Liability Partnership 

 

 

Assets 

211,132 

847,188 

111,387 

106,447 

32,533 

103,899 

82,324 

914,327 

 

147,635 

21,469 

410,685 

94,865 

66,563 

43,089 

29,494 

167,949 

14,766 

86,557 

3,709 

23,553 

46,963 

407,284 

58,243 

368,722 

190  

176 

84,677 

1

 

 

Liabilities 

119,098 

486,969 

97,657 

96,887 

72 

55,984 

45,698 

529,565 

 

94,963 

2,038 

173,645 

24,006 

37,032 

35,123 

12,726 

114,945 

12,403 

79,684 

2,450 

13,778 

17,936 

177,950 

35,516 

47,671 

69  

11 

1,016 

-

 

 

Equity 

92,034 

360,219 

13,730 

9,560 

32,461 

47,915 

36,626 

384,762 

 

52,672 

19,431 

237,040 

70,859 

29,531 

7,966 

16,768 

53,004 

2,363 

6,873 

1,259 

9,775 

29,027 

229,334 

22,727 

321,051 

121  

165 

83,661 

1

 

 

Revenue 

483,857 

1,791,155 

593,380 

506,985 

1,520 

195,185 

153,713 

1,250,442 

 

396,461 

16,442 

516,667 

23,056 

104,465 

130,066 

14,985 

500 

24,803 

125,720 

24,877 

83,647 

60,506 

35,315 

89,763 

441,443 

1,416 

 

- 

- 

-

 

 

Profit (loss) 

for the year

(2,074)

95,976 

1,036 

2,140 

3,129 

5,165 

2,191 

80,491  

14,918 

3,027 

55,414 

(64)

1,546 

1,492 

1,232 

(1,735)

(7,236)

(12,981)

328 

3,269 

1,872 

18,165 

3,496 

13,948 

11 

 

(5)

(3,848)

-

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are summarized below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Company maintains its accounting records in Korean won and prepares statutory financial statements in the Korean lan-
guage (Hangul) in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea 
(“Korean IFRS”). The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been condensed, restructured and translated into 
English from the Korean language financial statements. 

Certain information attached to the Korean language financial statements, but not required for a fair presentation of the 
Company’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 

The Company’s financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2010, have been prepared in accordance 
with Korean IFRS. These are the standards, subsequent amendments and related interpretations issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) that have been adopted by the Republic of Korea.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated finan-
cial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(1) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company changed its accounting policy to present the operating income after deducting cost of sales, and selling and 
administrative expenses from revenue, in accordance with the amendment of Korean IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial 
Statements.

The Company applies the accounting policy retroactively in accordance with the amended standards and the comparative consoli-
dated statement of the comprehensive income is restated by reflecting adjustments resulting from the retrospective application. 
As a result of the changes in the accounting policy, other operating income and expenses of ￦371,520 million and ￦335,824 mil-
lion, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011: ￦452,744 million and ￦436,078 million, respectively), which 
include gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and others, classified as operating profit under the previous 
standard, were excluded from the operating profit. Consequently, operating profit for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 
2011, was lower by ￦35,696 million and ￦16,666 million, respectively, as compared to the amounts under the previous standard. 
However, there is no material impact on net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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(2) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginning January 1, 2012, and 
not early adopted by the Company are as follows: 

-  Amendment of Korean IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements

Korean-IFRS 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements, requires other comprehensive income items to be presented into two 
groups on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently. This is effective for annual peri-
ods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, with early adoption permitted. The Company expects that the application of this amend-
ment would not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

-  Amendments to Korean IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits

According to the amendments to Korean IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits, the use of a ‘corridor’ approach is no longer permitted, 
and therefore all actuarial gains and losses incurred are immediately recognized in other comprehensive income. All past ser-
vice costs incurred from changes in pension plan are immediately recognized, and expected returns on interest costs and plan 
assets that used to be separately calculated are now changed to calculating net interest expense (income) by applying discount 
rate used in measuring defined benefit obligation in net defined benefit liabilities (assets). This amendment will be effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company expects that the application of this enactment would not 
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

-  Enactment of Korean IFRS 1113, Fair Value Measurement

Korean IFRS 1113, Fair Value Measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise defini-
tion of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Korean IFRSs. 
Korean IFRS 1113 does not extend the use of fair value accounting but provides guidance on how it should be applied where its 
use is already required or permitted by other standards within the Korean IFRSs. This amendment will be effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company expects that the application of this enactment would not have a 
material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

-  Enactment of Korean IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements

Korean IFRS 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the 
determining factor in whether an entity should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company. An 
investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in 
the determination of control where this is difficult to assess. This enactment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2013, and the Company is reviewing the impact of this standard.

-  Enactment of Korean IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements

Korean IFRS 1111, Joint Arrangements, aims to reflect the substance of joint arrangements by focusing on the contractual 
rights and obligations that each party to the arrangement has rather than its legal form. Joint arrangements are classified as 
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either joint operations or joint ventures. A joint operation is when joint operators have rights to the assets and obligations for 
the liabilities, and account for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, while parties to the joint venture have rights to the 
net assets of the arrangement and account for their interest in the joint venture using the equity method. This enactment will be 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company is reviewing the impact of this standard.

-  Enactment of Korean IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

Korean IFRS 1112, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, provides the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in 
other entities, including a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate, a consolidated structured entity and an unconsolidated 
structured entity. This enactment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and the Company is 
reviewing the impact of this standard.

2.3 Consolidation

The Company has prepared the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Korean IFRS 1027, ‘Consolidated and 
separate financial statements’.

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Company has the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and 
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the 
Company controls another company. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the 
Company. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the 
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree 
and the equity interests issued by the Company. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability 
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Company recognizes 
any non-controlling interest in the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling 
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest 
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Company is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent 
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance 
with Korean IFRS 1039, either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is 
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-control-
ling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree held by the 
Company over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than 
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between consolidated companies are 
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopt-
ed by the Company.

(2) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, that is, 
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and 
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on dispos-
als to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Company ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when 
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for 
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, 
any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Company 
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other compre-
hensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(4) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a share-
holding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting and are initially recognized at cost. The Company’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisi-
tion, net of any accumulated impairment loss (Note 2.17).

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the 
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Company’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the statement of income, and its share 
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income with a corre-
sponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or 
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize further loss-
es, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is 
impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount as ‘impairment loss on investment in an associate’ in 
the statement of income.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s inter-
est in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the 
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with policies 
adopted by the Company. Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognized in the statement of 
income. 

(5) Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties (co-venturers) undertake an economic activity that is 
subject to joint control. As with associates, investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method 
of accounting and are initially recognized at cost. The Company’s investment in jointly controlled entities includes goodwill 
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss (Note 2.16). The Company does not recognize its share of 
profits or losses from the joint venture that result from the Company’s purchase of assets from the joint venture until it re-sells 
the assets to an independent party. However, a loss on the transaction is recognized immediately if the loss provides evidence 
of a reduction in the net realizable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the 
operating segments, has been identified as the Corporate Management Committee that makes strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are pre-
sented in ‘Korean won’, which is the Parent Company’s functional and the Company’s presentation currency.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in for-
eign currencies are recognized in the statement of income, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying 
cash flow hedges.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the statement of 
income within ‘finance income or expenses’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of 
income within ‘other non-operating income or expenses’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analyzed 
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying 
amount of the security.  Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other 
changes in carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities, such as equities held at fair value through profit or 
loss, are recognized in the statement of income as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary 
financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

(3) Consolidated companies

The results and financial position of all consolidated entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation 
currency are translated as follows:

ⅰ) �Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of 
that statement of financial position;

ⅱ)� �Income and expenses for each statement of income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not 
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case 
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

ⅲ) All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings and other cur-
rency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive income. When foreign 
operations are wholly or partially sold, exchange differences recognized in equity are transferred to profit or loss in the state-
ment of income.  When the Company ceases to control the subsidiary, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are 
recognized in the statement of income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the for-
eign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.7 Financial instruments

2.7.1 Classification

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments, and other financial lia-
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bilities at amortized cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and the 
nature of the instruments. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

(1) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial instruments held for trading. Financial assets 
and liabilities are classified in this category if acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the 
near term. Derivatives including bifurcated derivatives from financial instruments containing embedded derivatives are also 
categorized as held-for-trading unless they are designated as hedges. The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets 
and liabilities as current assets ad current liabilities.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 
These are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and receivables are presented as ‘cash and cash equiva-
lents’, ‘trade receivables’ and ‘other receivables’ in the statement of financial position.

(3) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 
that the Company’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are 
included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period, 
which are classified as current assets.

(4) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose of 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. The Company’s available-for-sale financial assets are included in ‘other 
financial assets’ in the statement of financial position.

(5) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
financial guarantee contracts and financial assets that arise when a transfer of financial assets does not qualify for derecogni-
tion, as financial liabilities carried at amortized cost and as ‘trade payables’, ‘borrowings’, and ‘other payables’ in the statement 
of financial position. Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost are included in non-current liabilities, except for liabilities 
with maturities within 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as current liabilities.

2.7.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognized at 
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fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of income. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the investments have been expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred sub-
stantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are pre-
sented in the statement of income within ‘finance income or expenses’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the statement of income when the Company’s right to 
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recog-
nized in ‘other comprehensive income’. When securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired, 
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in equity are recognized in the statement of income.

Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of 
income as part of ‘finance income’. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the statement of 
income as part of ‘finance income’ when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7.4 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have 
been transferred and the Company has substantially transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. If the risk and rewards of 
ownership of transferred assets have not been substantially transferred, the Company reviews the level of control retained 
over that asset and the extent of its continuing involvement to determine if transfers do not qualify for derecognition.

Collaterals (trade receivables and other) provided in transactions of discount and factoring of trade receivables do not meet the 
requirements for asset derecognition if risks and rewards do not substantially transfer in the event the debtor defaults. 
Financial liabilities recognized in relation to these transactions are included as ‘borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

2.8 Impairment of financial assets

(1) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred 
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of 
the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
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or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Company uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
-� �For economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the 

lender would not otherwise consider;
- It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
-� �Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial 

assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial 
assets in the portfolio, including:

  1) Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and
  2) National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

Impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted using the initial effective interest rate. The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced by the impairment loss amount and the amount of the loss is recognized in the state-
ment of income. In practice, the Company may measure impairment loss based on the fair value of the financial asset using an 
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previ-
ously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income.

(2) Assets classified as available for sale

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Company uses the criteria provided in (1) above. In the case of equity 
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security 
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss-measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed from equity and recognized in the statement of 
income.  Impairment losses recognized in the statement of income on equity instruments are not reversed through the state-
ment of income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale financial assets 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit 
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments 

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-mea-
sured at their fair value. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income within ‘other operating income and 
expenses’ or ‘finance income or expenses’ depending on the nature of transactions.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, 
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as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Company also docu-
ments its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging 
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recog-
nized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the state-
ment of income within ‘other non-operating income or expenses’ or ‘finance income or expenses’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified as profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. 
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immedi-
ately transferred to the statement of income within ‘other non-operating income or expenses’ or ‘finance income or expenses’. 

2.10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If 
collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective inter-
est method, less provision for impairment.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost method 
except goods in transit which is determined using the specific identification method. The cost of finished goods and work in 
progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads based on normal operat-
ing capacity. It excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or deemed cost less depreciation.  Historical cost or deemed cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item  will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of 
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Structures

Machinery

Others

25 - 50 years

15 - 50 years

6 - 15 years

1 - 6 years

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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The assets’ depreciation method, residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17). Gains or losses on disposals are determined by compar-
ing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within ‘other non-operating income or expenses’ in the state-
ment of income.

2.13 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of 
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are presented as a deduction of related assets and are credited to 
depreciation over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the statement of income over the period necessary to 
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.15 Intangible assets

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as explained in Note 2.3(1). Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and business is included in 
intangible assets and goodwill arising on the acquisition of associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill is test-
ed annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not 
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the CGUs, or group of 
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.  Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a 
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use 
and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(2) Industrial property rights

Industrial property rights are shown at historical cost. Industrial property rights have a finite useful life and are carried at cost 
less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of industrial 
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property rights over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

(3) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets such as software which meet the definition of an intangible asset are amortized using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 20 years when the assets are available for use. Membership rights are regarded 
as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and not amortized as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the 
asset is expected to be utilized. All membership rights are tested annually for impairment and stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

2.16 Research and development

Costs associated with research are recognized as an expense as incurred. Costs that are identifiable, controllable and directly 
attributable to development projects are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- It is technically feasible to complete the development project so that it will be available for use;
- Management intends to complete the development project and use or sell it;
- There is an ability to use or sell the development project;
- It can be demonstrated how the development project will generate probable future economic benefits;
- �Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the development project are 

available; and
- The expenditure attributable to the development project during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs 
previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalized development costs that 
are recognized as intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of three to 
six years when the assets are available for use and are tested for impairment.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstanc-
es indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered 
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. 

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from 
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented 
as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized as 
‘financial expenses’ in the statement of income over the borrowing period using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabili-
ty for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, 
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of income, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recog-
nized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date in 
the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. The Company periodically evaluates positions taken 
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. It represents future tax consequences that will arise when recover-
ing or settling the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises 
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transac-
tion affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.  Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related 
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, and 
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by 
the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred income 
tax assets arising from these assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will be 
reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention either to settle the balanc-
es on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial Statements



40LG Chem Annual Report 2012

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. 
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The 
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.22 Employee benefits

The Company operates various pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance compa-
nies or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The Company operates both defined contri-
bution and defined benefit plans. 

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The 
Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to 
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. For the defined contribution plan, 
the Company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or 
voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that 
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of 
pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of ser-
vice and compensation.  The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension plan 
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, together 
with adjustments for unrecognized past-service costs. The defined benefit liability is calculated annually by independent actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the esti-
mated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the 
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

 Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 
to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Actuarial gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive 
income are immediately recognized in retained earnings and are not recognized in profit or loss in a subsequent period. 

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares and preferred shares without mandatory redemption obligation are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any consolidated company purchases the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly 
attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are can-

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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celled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received is included in equity attributable 
to the Company’s equity holders.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the 
Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales with-
in the Company.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described 
below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of trans-
action and the terms of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized upon delivery of products to customers. Delivery does not occur until the products have been 
delivered to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the 
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the 
Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. The Company recognizes provisions for 
product warranties and sales returns based on reasonable expectation reflecting warranty obligation and sales return rates 
incurred historically. 

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Company reduc-
es the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on 
impaired receivables is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

2.25 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operat-
ing leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser) are charged to the state-
ment of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are clas-
sified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased 
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance bal-
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ance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are recognized as ‘borrowings’. The interest 
element of the finance cost is charged to the statement of income over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance 
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term (Note 16). 

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend liability is recognized in the financial statements when the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3.  Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s over-
all risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain expo-
sures.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance team under policies approved by the Corporate Management 
Committee. The finance team identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operat-
ing units. The Corporate Management Committee provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written 
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of surplus liquidity. 

(1) Market risk
      
1) Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, pri-
marily with respect to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets 
and liabilities.

Management has set up a policy to require consolidated companies to manage their foreign exchange risk against their func-
tional currency. Each consolidated entity manages its foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions and 
recognized assets and liabilities through foreign currency denominated borrowings and derivative instruments such as forward 
contracts in co-operation with finance team. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized 
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency.

The Company manages maximum loss for currency risk exposures within acceptable range by using currency risk manage-
ment model and hires employees who are exclusively responsible for currency risk management.  

The Company has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. 
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Company’s foreign operations is managed primarily through borrowings 
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than its 
functional currency, are as follows:

Financial Statements

USD

EUR

GBP

JPY and others

 

Liabilities

2,357,283

71,013

2,055

715,298

 

Assets

2,003,470

41,212

6,995

20,913

 

Liabilities

2,437,724 

69,940 

1,244 

152,596 

 

Assets

1,887,144 

48,383 

1,400 

26,164 

2012 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, if the Company’s functional currency had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US 
dollar with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been affected as follows: 

USD

 

10% Decrease

  35,381

 

10% Increase

(35,381) 

 

10%  Decrease

  55,058 

 

10% Increase

(55,058)  

2012 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

The above sensitivity analysis has been performed for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other 
than the Company’s functional currency at the reporting date. 

2) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow 
interest rate risk which is partially offset by financial assets held at variable rates.  

The Company analyzes its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration 
refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates 
the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the same interest rate shift is used for all cur-
rencies. The scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on profit for the year of a 0.1% shift would be a maximum increase of ￦2,120 
million (2011: ￦1,919 million) or decrease of ￦2,120 million (2011: ￦1,919 million), respectively.

Based on the various scenarios, the Company manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate 
swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, 
the Company raises long-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than those available 
if the Company borrowed at fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, the Company agrees with other parties to 
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by 
reference to the agreed notional amounts.
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Loans and receivables

(excluding cash on hand)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Total

Before 

impairment 

 

4,653,130 

2,352  

4,655,482

Before 

impairment 

 

4,666,481 

- 

 4,666,481

Accumulated 

impairment 

loss 

(10,110)  

- 

(10,110)

Accumulated 

impairment 

loss 

(5,072)  

- 

(5,072)

After 

impairment

(maximum 

exposure)
4,643,020 

2,352  

4,645,372

After 

impairment

(maximum 

exposure)
4,661,409 

- 

4,661,409

2012 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012 and 2011
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(2) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and 
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and 
committed transactions.  

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the maximum degrees of credit exposures are as follows : 

In addition, details of financial guarantees provided by the Company are disclosed in Notes 3.1.(3) and 20.

The Company has established the following policies and procedures to manage credit risks.

To manage credit risks relating to trade receivables, the Company evaluates the credit rating of customers and determines 
credit limit for each customer based on the information provided by credit rating agencies and other available financial infor-
mation before commencing business with customers. The credit risks relating to trade receivables are also mitigated by insur-
ance contracts, collaterals as well as payment guarantees.
 
The Company has entered into export insurance contracts with Korea Trade Insurance Corporation to mitigate credit risks 
relating to export trade receivables to overseas customers. The Company is also provided with collaterals by customers 
depending on their credit rating or payment guarantees from the customers’ financial institutions as necessary.

The Company has deposited its cash and cash equivalent and other long-term deposits in several financial institutions such as 
Woori Bank and Shinhan Bank. The Company has also entered into derivative contracts with several financial institutions. The 
Company maintains business relationship with those financial institutions with high credit ratings evaluated by independent 
credit rating agencies and accordingly, credit risks associated with these financial institutions are limited. 

(3) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by consolidated subsidiaries and aggregated by corporate finance team. Finance team 
monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs 
while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company does not 
breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the 
Company’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance with internal statement of financial position ratio targets 
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and, if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements - for example, currency restrictions.

The Company’s finance team invests surplus cash in interest-bearing current accounts, time deposits, and money market 
deposits, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient head-room as deter-
mined by the above-mentioned forecasts.

1) �The table below analyzes the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 	
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities)

Finance lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total

 

Over 5 years

284

-

-

284

 

2 to 5 years

801,771

-

-

801,771

 

1 to 2 years

496,794

3,195

15,652

515,641

 

Less than 1 year

1,770,631

2,481

2,288,782

4,061,894

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities)

Finance lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total

 

Over 5 years

590

-

-

590

 

2 to 5 years

593,718

3,195

-

596,913

 

1 to 2 years

151,473

2,481

41,329

195,283

 

Less than 1 year

1,860,238

2,481

2,453,274

4,315,993

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2011

Net-settled derivative  

	 financial liabilities 

Gross-settled derivative  

	 financial liabilities 

 

 

Hedging

	N et-cash flow

Subtotal

Trading

	I nflow

	O utflow

Subtotal

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Less than 1 year

(154)

(154)

173,728 

(171,376)

2,352

2,198

 

Over 5 years

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

2 to 5 years

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

1 to 2 years

-

-

-

-

-

-

December 31, 2012

(in millions of Korean won) 

Net-settled derivative  

	 financial liabilities 

Hedging

	N et-cash flow

Total

 

Less than 1 year

(540)

(540)

 

Over 5 years

-

-

 

2 to 5 years

-

-

 

1 to 2 years

(147)

(147)

December 31, 2011

2) �The table below analyzes the Company’s derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remain-
ing period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
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3) �The table below analyzes the Company’s financial guarantee contracts into relevant maturity groupings based on the remain-
ing period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Financial guarantee contracts1

 

Over 5 years

741

 

2 to 5 years

433

 

1 to 2 years

60,121

 

Less than 1 year

150,109

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2011

1 �
The Company and LG Hausys Ltd. have provided the joint guarantee for obligations outstanding as of April 1, 2009, the spin-off date. The amounts represent the maximum 

amount of the guarantee allocated to the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called.

Financial guarantee contracts1

 

Over 5 years

571

 

2 to 5 years

470

 

1 to 2 years

132 

 

Less than 1 year

60,121

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

3.2 Capital risk management

The Company’s capital objectives are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns 
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as 
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is cal-
culated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratio and debt to equity ratio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 16) (A) 

Less: cash and cash equivalents (B) 

Net debt (C=A+B)

Total liabilities (D) 

Total equity (E)

Total capital (F=C+E)

Gearing ratio (C/F) 

Debt to equity ratio (D/E) 

2012

2,946,907 

(720,767)

2,226,140 

5,815,798 

10,765,355 

12,991,495 

17.1% 

54.0% 

2011

2,526,718

(1,379,379)

1,147,339

5,577,875

9,707,679

10,855,018

10.6%

57.5%

(in millions of Korean won, except for ratios) 
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3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined 
as follows:

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : �Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

(e.g., as prices) or indirectly (e.g., derived from prices).
Level 3 : Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) �The following tables present the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of December 
31, 2012 and 2011:

Financial assets

	O ther current financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities 

	O ther current financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

2,352

2,352

154

154

 

Level 3

-

-

-

-

 

Level 2

2,352

2,352

154

154

 

Level 1

-

-

-

-

2012

Financial assets

	O ther current financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

	O ther current financial liabilities

	O ther non-current financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

-

-

536

146

682

 

Level 3

-

-

-

-

-

 

Level 2

-

-

536

146

682

 

Level 1

-

-

-

-

-

2011

All other non-current financial assets of the Company consist of available-for-sale equity securities and are measured at cost 
(December 31, 2012: ￦21,811 million; December 31, 2011: ￦5,973 million) as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is 
significant and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed. These are not included in the analysis 
above (Note 9). The Company does not have any plans to dispose these available-for-sale equity securities in the near future.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A mar-
ket is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, an entity in the 
same industry, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market trans-
actions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid 
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The 
Company uses various techniques and makes judgments based on current market conditions. These valuation techniques 
maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all 
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
- ��The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable 

yield curves.
-� �Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instru-

ments.

4.  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated 
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be rea-
sonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual 
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities after the end of the reporting period are addressed below.

(1) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Company tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in 
Note 2.16. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These 
calculations require the use of estimates.

(2) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the world-
wide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes 
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differ-
ences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

(3) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The 
Company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions 
existing at the end of each reporting period.  
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(4) Provisions

The Company recognizes provisions for product warranties and sales return as of the reporting date as described in Note 17. 
The amounts are estimated based on historical data.

(5) Defined benefit liability

The present value of the defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using 
a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. 
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of the defined benefit liability. The Company determines the 
appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that is used to determine the present value of esti-
mated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit liability. In determining the appropriate dis-
count rate, the Company considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in 
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. Other 
key assumptions for defined benefit liability are based in part on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed 
in Note 18.
 
5.  Financial instruments by category

Categorizations of financial instruments are as follows:

 

Financial assets

	��C ash and cash equivalents

	T rade receivables

	O ther receivables

	O ther current financial assets

	O ther non-current receivables

	O ther non-current financial assets 

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total 

720,767

3,131,051

772,746

2,352

20,718

21,811

4,669,445

 

Assets classified as 

available-for-sale

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

21,811 

21,811 

 

Assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

- 

- 

- 

2,352 

- 

- 

2,352 

 

Loans and  

receivables

720,767 

3,131,051 

772,746 

- 

20,718 

- 

4,645,282 

December 31, 2012
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Financial liabilities

	T rade payables

	O ther payables

	 Borrowings (current)

	O ther financial liabilities

	O ther current liabilities

	O ther non-current payables

	 Borrowings (non-current)

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

1,522,395 

766,231 

1,751,781 

154 

1,115 

15,070 

1,195,126 

5,251,872 

 

Liabilities at amortized cost

1,522,395 

766,231 

1,751,781 

- 

1,115 

15,070 

1,195,126 

5,251,718 

 

Hedging derivatives

- 

- 

- 

154 

- 

- 

- 

154 

December 31, 2012

 

Financial assets

	C ash and cash equivalents

	T rade receivables

	O ther receivables

	O ther non-current receivables

	O ther non-current financial assets 

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total 

1,379,379

3,117,239

133,915

33,657

5,973

4,670,163

 

Assets classified as 

available-for-sale

-

-

-

-

5,973

5,973 

 

Assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Loans and  

receivables

 

1,379,379

3,117,239

133,915

33,657

-

4,664,190

December 31, 2011

 

Financial liabilities

	T rade payables

	O ther payables

	 Borrowings (current)

	O ther financial liabilities

	O ther current liabilities

	O ther non-current payables

	 Borrowings (non-current)

	O ther non-current financial liabilities

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

1,503,106

950,168

1,837,637

536

1,143 

41,329 

689,081 

146 

5,023,146 

 

Liabilities at amortized cost

1,503,106

950,168

1,837,637

-

1,143 

41,329 

689,081 

- 

5,022,464 

 

Hedging derivatives

- 

-

-

536

-

-

-

146

682

December 31, 2011
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Net gains(losses) on financial instruments by category are as follows:

Assets at fair value through profit or loss

	L oss on valuation/disposal

Hedging derivatives

	G ain on valuation/disposal 

	G ain on valuation recognized in other comprehensive expenses

	I nterest expense

Assets classified as available-for-sale

	L oss on valuation/disposal

	 Dividend income

Loans and receivables

	I nterest income

	G ain(loss) on foreign currency translation

	G ain(loss) on foreign exchange

Liabilities at amortized cost

	I nterest expense

	G ain on foreign currency translation

	G ain(loss) on foreign exchange

2012

7,470 

- 

527 

(740)

- 

157 

30,099 

(31,440)

(129,223)

(102,517)

41,159 

114,331 

2011

(29,431)

8,914

  4,682

(12,198)

(2)

159

27,393

5,366

22,514

(77,488)

12,708

(18,731)

(in millions of Korean won) 

6.  Cash and cash equivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Bank deposits and cash on hand

Financial deposits, others

Total

December 31, 2012

282,039

438,728

720,767

December 31, 2011

324,364

1,055,015

1,379,379

(in millions of Korean won) 

As of December 31, 2012, other non-current receivables amounting to ￦38 million are restricted from withdrawal in connec-
tion with maintaining checking accounts and customs duty (2011: ￦40 million). As of December 31, 2012, cash and cash equiva-
lents include deposits with banks of ￦4,079 million held by a subsidiary which are not freely remissible to the Parent Company 
because of currency exchange restrictions.
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Trade receivables1

Other current receivables

Other non-current receivables

Total

Original 

amount

 

3,141,161

772,746

20,718

3,934,625

Original

amount

 

3,122,311

133,915

33,657

3,289,883

Less :  

allowance 

for doubtful 

accounts
(10,110)

-

-

(10,110) 

Less : 

allowance 

for doubtful 

accounts
(5,072)

-

 -

(5,072) 

Carrying 

amount

3,131,051

772,746

20,718

3,924,515

Carrying 

amount

3,117,239

133,915

33,657

3,284,811

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
As of December 31, 2012, trade receivables transferred to financial institutions but not fully derecognized are as follows (Note 16):

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Carrying amount of transferred assets

Carrying amount of related liabilities

For those liabilities that have recourse only to the 	

	 transferred assets:

	 Fair value of transferred assets

	 Fair value of related liabilities

Net position

 

December 31, 2011

927,555 

(927,555)

 

927,555 

(927,555)

- 

(in millions of Korean won) 

Loans and receivables (trade receivables collateralized borrowings)

 

 

December 31, 2012

994,295 

(994,295)

 

994,295 

(994,295)

- 

Details of other receivables are as follows:

Current

	N on-trade receivables

	 Financial deposits

	A ccrued income

	 Deposits

Non-current

	 Financial deposits

	L oans

	 Deposits

Total

December 31, 2011

111,466

12,477

2,230

7,742

133,915

40

705

32,912

33,657

167,572

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

99,107

642,616

7,664

23,359

772,746

38

150

20,530

20,718

793,464

7.  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, are as follows:
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The aging analysis of these trade and other receivables is as follows:

Receivables not past due

Past due but not impaired

	U p to 3 months

	 3 to 6 months

	O ver 6 months

Impaired receivables

Trade receivables

2,554,612

581,221

556,605

21,322

3,294

5,328

3,141,161

Other receivables

787,580

5,884

4,973

432

479

-

793,464 

Trade receivables

2,626,703

492,196

482,580

6,613

3,003

3,412

3,122,311

Other receivables

161,585

5,987

4,324

243

1,420

- 

167,572

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

The movements in bad debt allowance for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

 

Beginning balance

Additions

Reversals

Write-off

Exchange differences

Ending balance

 

Current

5,072

6,147

-

(826)

(283)

10,110

 

Current

7,293

130

(2,150)

(202)

1

5,072

 

Non-

current

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Non-

current

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Current

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Current

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Non-

current

-

-

-

-

-

-

 

Non-

current

- 

-

-

-

-

-

Trade receivables Other receivables

2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

2012

Trade receivables Other receivables

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.

8.  Other financial assets and liabilities

Details of other financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

Other financial assets

	 Derivatives (Note 10)

	A vailable-for-sale (Note 9)

	L ess: current portion

Total

Other financial liabilities

	 Derivatives (Note 10)

	L ess: current portion

Total

December 31, 2011

-

5,973

-

5,973

682

(536)

146

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

2,352

21,811

(2,352)

21,811

154

(154)

-
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9. Financial assets classified as available-for-sale

The movements in financial assets classified as available-for-sale for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Beginning balance

Exchange differences

Additions

Disposals

Ending balance

2012

5,973

(12) 

15,850

-

21,811

2011 

4,183

 (12) 

1,817 

(15)

5,973 

(in millions of Korean won) 

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale consist of unlisted equity securities.  
The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the proba-
bilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

No impairment losses were recognized for financial assets classified as available-for-sale during the years ended December 
31, 2012 and 2011.

10.  Derivative financial instruments

Details of derivative financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

Current

	C ash flow hedges

	H eld-for-trading

Non-current

	C ash flow hedges

Assets

-

2,352

2,352

-

Liabilities

154

-

154

-

Assets

-

-

-

-

Liabilities

536

-

536

146

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Details of derivative financial contracts are as follows:

Classification 

Forward exchange 

Interest rate swap 

 

 

Contractor 

BOA and 

13 other banks

HSBC 

HSBC 

 

 

Contract date 

2012.10.10, others 

2006.10.11 

2007.06.15 

 

Contract amount

(in thousands)

US$ 10,000, others 

￦ 3,000,000 

US$ 4,500 

 

Contract period 

2013.01.03 ~ 

2013.02.22, etc

2006.10.11 ~ 2013.09.05 

2007.06.15 ~ 2013.09.05 

 

Contract terms 

￦ 1119.32, $, others 

Received: 3 month CD, 

Paid: 4.61%

Received: 3 month 

Libor Paid: 5.59%

December 31, 2012
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Trading derivative financial instrument is classified as a current asset or liability. Hedging derivative financial instrument is 
classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a cur-
rent asset or liability, if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

There was no ineffective portion of cash flow hedges

11.  Inventories

Details of inventories are as follows:

Classification 

Interest rate swap 

 

 

Contractor 

HSBC 

HSBC 

 

Contract date 

 2006.10.11 

2007.06.15 

 

Contract amount

(in thousands)

  ￦ 7,000,000 

US$ 10,500 

 

Contract period 

2006.10.11 ~ 2013.09.05 

2007.06.15 ~ 2013.09.05 

 

Contract terms 

Received: 3 month CD, 

Paid: 4.61%

Received: 3 month 

LiborPaid: 5.59%

December 31, 2011

 

Merchandise

Finished products 

Semi-finished products

Work-in-process

Raw materials

Supplies

Materials-in-transit

Total

Original 

amount
87,584 

1,136,794 

298,794 

363 

762,954 

78,517 

285,309 

2,650,315 

Original

amount
89,527

1,163,744

317,357

3,508

634,518

71,598

207,373

2,487,625

Valuation 

allowance
(917)

(20,168)

            - 

            - 

(1,300)

            - 

            - 

(22,385)

Valuation 

allowance
(303)

(10,911)

-

-

(1,178)

-

-

(12,392)

Carrying 

amount
86,667 

1,116,626 

298,794 

363 

761,654 

78,517 

285,309 

2,627,930 

Carrying 

amount
89,224

1,152,833

317,357

3,508

633,340

71,598

207,373

2,475,233

December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in ‘Cost of Sales’ amounted to ￦16,688,614 million (2011: 
￦15,751,577 million).
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(in millions of Korean won) 

 

LG Vina chemical Co.,Ltd

HL Greenpower Co.,Ltd. 

LG Holdings (HK) Ltd.

TECWIN Co.,Ltd. 

SEETEC Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem Brasil  

	INTERME DICAO DE 		

	NEGOCIOS  DO SETOR QUIMICO LTDA. 

LG Yongxing International Trading Co.,Ltd 

CNOOC & LG Petrochemicals Co.,Ltd. 

KLPE Limited Liability Partnership1

Total

 

Beginning 

balance

 

3,911 

14,250 

61,459 

4,570 

147,423 

258 

 

 

82 

40,969 

55,486 

328,408 

 

Acquisitions

 

- 

- 

- 

13 

- 

- 

 

 

(82)

- 

75,565 

75,496 

 

Dividends

(1,373)

- 

- 

(33)

- 

- 

 

 

- 

- 

- 

(1,406)

 

Share of 

profit(loss) of 

associates 

1,434

1,289

2,198

858 

7,712 

- 

 

- 

(175)

(896)

12,420 

 

Share of other 

comprehensive 

income of 

associates
(297)

- 

(3,645)

- 

- 

-  

 

- 

(1,550)

(4,283)

(9,775)

 

Others

 

 

- 

18 

- 

- 

(93)

-  

 

- 

- 

- 

(75)

 

Ending 

balance

 

3,675 

15,557 

60,012 

5,408 

155,042 

258  

 

- 

39,244 

125,872 

405,068 

 2012

1 �
The Company has recognized ￦15,910 million as other payable and ￦10,129 million as non-current other payable as of December 31, 2012, for the unpaid consideration in the 

acquisition of KLPE Limited Liability Partnership.

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

LG Vina chemical Co.,Ltd.

HL Greenpower Co.,Ltd. 

LG Holdings (HK) Ltd.

TECWIN Co.,Ltd. 

SEETEC Co.,Ltd. 

LG Chem Brasil 

	INTERME DICAO DE

	NEGOCIOS  DO SETOR QUIMICO LTDA. 

LG Yongxing International Trading Co.,Ltd. 

CNOOC & LG Petrochemicals Co.,Ltd. 

KLPE Limited Liability Partnership1

Total

 

Beginning 

balance

 

3,387 

13,354 

53,731 

3,892 

138,793 

258 

 

157 

- 

- 

213,572 

 

Acquisitions

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

40,230 

55,486 

95,716 

 

Dividends

(1,695)

- 

- 

(34)

- 

-  

- 

- 

- 

(1,729)

 

Share of 

profit(loss) of 

associates 

2,170 

896 

4,723 

717 

8,684 

-  

- 

(1,924)

- 

15,266 

 

Share of other 

comprehensive 

income of 

associates
49 

- 

3,005 

(5)

(54)

 -  

(75)

2,663 

- 

5,583 

 

Ending 

balance

 

3,911 

14,250 

61,459 

4,570 

147,423 

258 

 

82 

40,969 

55,486 

328,408 

2011

1 �
The Company has recognized ￦27,621million as other payable and ￦26,714 million as non-current other payable as of December 31, 2012, for the unpaid consideration in the 

acquisition of KLPE Limited Liability Partnership.

12.  Investments in associates and joint ventures

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in associates and joint ventures for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 
2011, are as follows:
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13.  Property, plant and equipment

Changes in the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Beginning 

balance

	C ost

	�A ccumulated 

depreciation

	�A ccumulated 

impairment

	�A cquisitions/ 

Transfer

	� Disposals/ 

Transfer

	�E xchange 

differences

	 Depreciation

	I mpairment

Ending balance

	C ost

	�A ccumulated 

depreciation

	�A ccumulated 

impairment

 

 

 Land 

604,869  

604,869 

- 

 

- 

 

107,541 

 

(26) 

(146) 

- 

- 

712,238 

712,238 

- 

 

- 

 

 

 

Buildings 

1,473,258  

1,765,429 

(292,165) 

(6) 

234,527  

(429) 

(13,965) 

(45,892)

- 

1,647,499 

1,981,069 

(333,565) 

(5) 

 

 

Structures 

361,886  

663,417 

(301,524) 

(7) 

161,191  

(217) 

(4,003) 

(30,984)

(1,965)

485,908 

814,135 

(327,929) 

(298) 

 

 

Machinery 

2,777,041 

 

7,540,031 

(4,753,396) 

(9,594) 

1,412,172  

(5,255) 

(36,250) 

(643,301)

(82)

3,504,325 

8,819,666 

(5,306,272) 

(9,069) 

 

Vehicles 

12,844  

41,219 

(28,375) 

- 

 

2,211 

 

(1,377) 

(54) 

(3,375)

- 

10,249 

38,873 

(28,624) 

- 

 

 

 

Tools 

202,042 

 

473,328 

(267,254) 

(4,032) 

113,595  

(1,489) 

(1,581) 

(62,795)

(26)

249,746 

570,364 

(316,586) 

(4,032) 

 

Equipment 

67,120 

 

200,374 

(133,153) 

(101) 

46,532  

(622) 

(957) 

(22,540)

(29)

89,504 

230,923 

(141,309) 

(110) 

 

Others 

115,292  

186,155 

(70,863) 

- 

 

20,619 

 

(250) 

- 

 

(47,367)

- 

88,294 

197,705 

(109,411) 

- 

 

 

 

Construction- 

in-progress
1,455,847  

1,490,643 

- 

 

(34,796) 

1,603,381 

 

(1,702,982) 

(16,076) 

- 

- 

1,340,170 

1,374,966 

- 

 

(34,796) 

 

Machinery- 

in-transit
305,756 

 

305,756 

- 

 

- 

 

281,623 

 

(367,134) 

- 

 

- 

- 

220,245 

220,245 

- 

 

- 

 

 

 

Total 

7,375,955 

13,271,221

(5,846,730) 

(48,536) 

3,983,392 

(2,079,781) 

(73,032) 

(856,254)

(2,102)

8,348,178

14,960,184

(6,563,696) 

(48,310) 

 

2012
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(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Beginning 

balance

	�C ost

	� Accumulated 	

depreciation

	�A ccumulated 

impairment

	�A cquisitions/ 

Transfer

	� Disposals/ 

Transfer

	�E xchange 

differences

	 Depreciation

Ending balance

	C ost

	�A ccumulated 

depreciation

	�A ccumulated 

impairment

 

 

 Land 

443,411 

443,411

- 

- 

162,175 

- 

(717) 

-

604,869

604,869

- 

- 

 

 

Buildings 

1,212,290 

1,475,425

(258,901) 

(4,234) 

 293,245 

(1,010) 

8,165 

(39,432)

1,473,258

1,765,429

(292,165) 

(6) 

 

 

Structures 

353,777 

632,000

(278,216) 

(7) 

32,780 

(99) 

3,255 

(27,827)

361,886

663,417

(301,524) 

(7) 

 

 

Machinery 

2,529,794 

6,928,120

(4,372,096) 

(26,230) 

781,560 

(4,916) 

31,264 

(560,661)

2,777,041

7,540,031

(4,753,396) 

(9,594) 

 

Vehicles 

8,454 

34,440

(25,986) 

- 

8,464 

(238) 

- 

(3,836)

12,844

41,219

(28,375) 

- 

 

 

 

Tools 

145,096 

374,325

(225,197) 

(4,032) 

109,902 

(2,610) 

326  

(50,672)

202,042

473,328

(267,254) 

(4,032) 

 

Equipment 

57,894 

179,962

(121,967) 

(101) 

28,221 

(353) 

473 

(19,115)

67,120

200,374

(133,153) 

(101) 

 

 

Others 

61,651 

94,668

(33,017) 

- 

93,889 

- 

- 

(40,248)

115,292

186,155

(70,863) 

- 

 

 

 

Construction- 

in-progress
890,720 

925,516

- 

(34,796) 

1,891,465 

(1,340,674) 

14,336 

-

1,455,847

1,490,643

- 

(34,796) 

 

Machinery-in-

transit
168,953 

168,953

- 

- 

282,656 

(145,854) 

1 

-

305,756

305,756

- 

- 

 

 

Total 

5,872,040 

11,256,820

(5,315,380) 

(69,400) 

3,684,357 

(1,495,754) 

57,103 

(741,791)

7,375,955

13,271,221

(5,846,730) 

(48,536) 

 

2011

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company capitalized ￦30,265 million of borrowing costs (2011: ￦22,555 million) 
to property, plant and equipment.

As of December 31, 2012, certain property, plant and equipment have been pledged as collaterals for certain bank loans for up 
to a maximum of ￦8,787 million (2011: ￦8,787 million).

The Company has a finance lease agreement on certain property, plant and equipment at the MTBE factory. The carrying 
amount of leased assets and depreciation are as follows:

Carrying amount

Depreciation

December 31, 2012

12

29

December 31, 2011

41

2,182 

(in millions of Korean won) 

The said agreement is non-cancellable finance lease agreements and the lease term is 15 years.
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Depreciation of property, plant and equipment was classified as follows:

14.  Intangible assets

Changes in the carrying amount of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Cost of sales 

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Others1

Total

2012

  799,532

54,980

1,742

  856,254

 2011

  692,536

48,451

804

  741,791

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
Amounts capitalized to development costs are included.

 

Beginning balance

	A cquisitions/Transfer 

	 Disposals/Transfer

	E xchange differences

	A mortization

Ending balance

Development 

costs
34,018 

24,445 

(6,825)

(70)

(9,158)

42,410 

Memberships 

51,110 

2,582 

(1,968)

(32)

- 

51,692 

Industrial 

property rights

61,856 

21,040 

(854)

- 

(3,432)

78,610 

Others 

26,773 

8,713 

(699)

(585)

(6,436)

27,766 

Goodwill 

33,415

-

-

-

-

33,415

Total 

207,172 

56,780 

(10,346)

(687)

(19,026)

233,893 

2012

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Beginning balance

	A cquisitions/Transfer 

	 Disposals/Transfer

	E xchange differences

	A mortization

Ending balance

Development 

costs
25,798

15,608

- 

45

(7,433) 

34,018

Memberships 

49,243

1,842

-

25

-

51,110 

Industrial 

property rights

55,708 

8,915

(8)

(228)

(2,531)

61,856

Others 

15,951 

15,763

(2)

778

(5,717)

26,773

Goodwill 

33,415

-

-

-

-

33,415

Total 

180,115

42,128

(10)

620

(15,681)

207,172 

2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Amortization of intangible assets was classified as follows:

Cost of sales 

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Total

2012
6,221

12,805

  19,026

 2011
4,835

10,846

  15,681

(in millions of Korean won) 

Impairment tests for goodwill
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Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to operating segment. The carrying 
amounts of allocated goodwill by CGUs are as follows:

CGUs

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of LG Petrochemical Co.,Ltd.

	NCC

	 PO

	S pecial resin

	S ynthetic rubber

	 Petrochemistry BPA

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of SAP business

	A crylic business

	T otal

Carrying amount

4,724

977

255

600

1,637

8,193

25,222

33,415

(in millions of Korean won) 

The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax 
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a four-year period. Cash flows beyond the 
four-year period are estimated using 0% of expected growth rate.

Management determined pre-tax cash flow based on past performance and its expectations of market development. The dis-
count rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments. Discount rate used for value-
in-use calculations for the current year is 12.82%. The recoverable amounts based on value-in-use calculations exceeded 
carrying amounts and accordingly, no impairments were recognized for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

15.  Other current and non-current assets

Details of other current and non-current assets are as follows:

Current

	 Prepayments to suppliers

	 Prepaid expenses

	 Prepaid value added tax

	O thers

	 Total

Non-current

	L ong-term prepaid expenses

	O ther investment assets

	T otal

December 31, 2012

48,552 

21,353 

69,449 

51,424 

190,778 

40,997 

25 

41,022 

 December 31, 2011

40,353

21,869

56,061

14,315

132,598

45,939

27

45,966

(in millions of Korean won) 
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16.  Borrowings

The carrying amount of borrowings are as follows:

Details of borrowings are as follows:

Current borrowings 

Current

	S hort-term borrowings

	C urrent maturities of bank loans

	C urrent maturities of debentures

	C urrent maturities of finance lease liabilities

Non-current

	 Bank loans

	 Debentures

	 Finance lease liabilities

	T otal

December 31, 2012

1,666,662

82,959

-

2,160

1,751,781

594,018

 598,034

3,074

1,195,126

2,946,907

 December 31, 2011

1,451,823

233,914

149,922

1,978

1,837,637

385,122

 298,725

5,234

689,081

2,526,718

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Notes discounted1

Bank loans

Total

 

Bank

Woori Bank, others

China Bank, others

Latest maturity  

date

2013.01.05

2013.12.27

 

Annual interest rate (%) at

December 31, 2012

3Libor+1.00, various

3Libor+0.50~4.00,  various

December 31,  

2012

994,295

672,367

1,666,662

December 31,  

2011

927,555

524,268

1,451,823

Carrying Amount

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
As of December 31, 2012, trade receivables transferred to financial institutions but not derecognized are accounted for as collateralized borrowing transaction (Note 7).



62LG Chem Annual Report 2012

December 31, 2012 and 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Non-current borrowings

Won currency borrowings

Foreign currency borrowings

 

Total

 

 

Bank 

Kookmin Bank

Kookmin Bank

Korea Development Bank

BTMU

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Standard Chartered Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

China Minsheng Bank

China Merchants Bank

ANZ Bank

ANZ Bank

ANZ Bank

ANZ Bank

Bank of America

Bank of America

BTMU

BTMU

BTMU

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC

Mizuho Banking Corporation

Mizuho Banking Corporation

Nordea Bank

Nova Scotia Bank

Less: discount on borrowings

 

 

Annual

interest rate (%)
3.00

3.00

3.53

3CD + 0.60

5.76

3Libor + 0.60

3Libor + 0.85

3Libor + 0.85

3Libor + 0.85

4.50

3Libor + 2.20

5.90

6Libor + 3.30

6.21

3Libor + 2.10

3Libor + 2.10

3Libor + 2.80

3Libor + 2.80

6Libor + 1.50

3Libor + 1.68

6Libor + 2.60

6Libor + 2.10

3Libor + 1.54

3Libor + 0.60

3Libor + 0.75

3Libor + 2.25

3Libor + 0.60

3Libor + 0.65

1Wibor+1.00

3Libor + 1.54

 

 

Latest maturity 

date
2018.07.14

2020.03.21

2015.07.19

2013.09.05

2015.09.15

2013.09.05

2014.07.12

2014.07.18

2014.07.29

2013.06.10

2015.12.15

2015.10.15

2013.01.15

2015.05.17

2013.07.07

2014.07.07

2013.04.12

2013.10.11

2014.10.24

2014.08.29

2013.04.26

2013.06.21

2015.07.20

2013.09.05

2014.09.19

2015.05.25

2013.09.05

2014.05.31

2014.06.30

2015.07.20

 

 

Total  

amount
         819 

         850 

  200,000 

      7,500  

3,008  

4,820  

10,711  

6,427  

4,284  

21,607  

10,804

17,180  

1,200  

5,156  

16,205  

16,205

4,822  

4,822  

32,411  

43,214

8,103

8,103  

53,555  

2,410  

43,214  

21,607  

3,213

64,266  

6,964  

53,555

(58)

676,977

 

 

Current  

maturities
             122 

                90 

                  - 

           7,500 

- 

          4,820 

- 

- 

- 

 21,607 

- 

- 

 1,200 

- 

 8,102 

 8,103 

 4,822 

 4,822 

- 

- 

 8,103 

   8,103 

        - 

    2,410 

- 

- 

           3,213 

- 

- 

         - 

(58)

82,959

 

 

Long-term  

debts
           697 

           760 

    200,000 

                - 

3,008   

- 

10,711 

6,427

4,284

- 

10,804  

17,180

- 

5,156  

8,103  

8,102

-

- 

32,411

43,214

-

- 

53,555  

-

43,214  

21,607 

- 

64,266

6,964 

53,555

- 

594,018

December 31, 2012

(in millions of Korean won) 
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Won currency borrowings

Foreign currency borrowings

 

Total

 

 

Bank 

Kookmin Bank

Kookmin Bank

BTMU

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Standard Chartered Bank

Woori Bank

China Construction Bank

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

Agricultural Bank of China

China Minsheng Bank

Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

Korea Development Bank

ANZ Bank

ANZ Bank

Bank of America

Bank of America

Bank of America

BTMU

BTMU

HSBC

HSBC

Mizuho Banking Corporation

Mizuho Banking Corporation

Nordea Bank

Less: discount on borrowings

 

 

 

Annual

interest rate (%)
3.00

3.00

3CD+0.60

6.65

3Libor+0.60

3Libor+0.85

4.50

6Libor+1.50

6Libor+1.40~2.50

6Libor+3.00

3Libor+1.50

6.80

6Libor+3.30

6Libor+1.20

6.65

3Libor+0.36

3Libor+2.80

3Libor+2.10

3Libor+1.65

3Libor+1.68

3Libor+1.87

6Libor+2.60

6Libor+2.60

3Libor+0.60

3Libor+1.20

3Libor+0.65

3Libor+0.60

1Wibor+1.00

 

 

Latest maturity 

date
2018.07.14

2020.03.21

2013.09.05

2015.06.20

2013.09.05

2014.07.29

2013.06.10

2012.12.11

2012.06.08

2013.01.17

2012.04.30

2015.10.15

2013.01.15

2012.03.01

2015.05.17

2012.01.10

2013.10.11

2014.07.07

2013.11.18

2014.08.29

2014.10.24

2013.06.21

2013.04.26

2013.09.05

2014.09.19

2014.05.31

2013.09.05

2014.06.30

 

 

Total  

amount
     931

932

17,500

4,209

12,110

23,066

23,000

23,000

23,000

23,000

21,850

23,726

6,389

33,430

9,125

57,665

20,530

34,499

28,833

45,999

34,499

25,874

25,874

6,055

45,999

34,599

8,073

5,418

(149)

619,036

 

 

Current  

maturities
  112

82

10,000

-

6,920

-

-

23,000

  23,000

-

21,850

-

5,111

34,430

-

57,665

10,265

-

-

-

-

17,249

17,249

3,460

-

-

4,613

-

(92)

233,914

 

 

Long-term  

debts
  819

850

7,500

4,209

 5,190

23,066

23,000

 -

   -

 23,000 

-

23,726

1,278

-

9,125

-

10,265

34,499

28,833

45,999

34,499

8,625

8,625

2,595

45,999

34,599

3,460

 5,418

(57)

385,122

December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Certain property, plant and equipment have been pledged as collaterals for the above non-current borrowings (Note 13).
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Debentures

 

Won currency 

debentures

Total

Financial  

institution

Woori Security

Woori Security

Woori Security

Woori Security

Less: discount on debentures

Total  

amount

200,000

100,000

100,000

200,000

(1,966)

598,034

Annual

interest rate (%)

3.83

4.03

3.96

4.11

Current 

maturities

-

-

-

-

-

-

Latest maturity 

date

2014.12.05

2016.12.05

2015.03.29

2017.03.29

Long-term debts 

200,000

100,000

100,000

200,000

(1,966)

598,034

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012

 

Won currency 

debentures

Total

Financial  

institution

Woori Security

Woori Security

Woori Security

Less: discount on debentures

Total  

amount

150,000

200,000

100,000

(1,353)

448,647

Annual

interest rate (%)

4.85

3.83

4.03

Current 

maturities

150,000

-

-

(78)

149,922

Latest maturity 

date

2012.04.29

2014.12.05

2016.12.05

Long-term debts 

-

200,000

100,000

(1,275)

298,725

December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Finance lease liabilities

 

 

Total amount 

5,234

 

 

Bank 

Hyundai Oil Bank

 

 

Annual

interest rate (%)

9.00

 

 

Latest maturity date 

2014.10.29

 

 

Current maturities 

2,160

 

 

Long-term debts 

3,074

December 31, 2012

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

 

Total amount 

7,212

 

 

Bank 

Hyundai Oil Bank

 

 

Annual

interest rate (%)

9.00

 

 

Latest maturity date 

2014.10.29

 

 

Current maturities 

1,978

 

 

Long-term debts 

5,234

December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

The finance lease liabilities are liabilities associated with sales and leaseback arrangements of property, plant and equipment 
of the MTBE factory (Note 13). 

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.
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Carrying amounts and fair values of non-current borrowings are as follows:

Bank loans

Debentures

Finance lease liabilities

Total

Carrying amount

594,018

598,034

3,074

1,195,126

Fair value1

590,654

616,213

3,031

1,209,898

Carrying amount

385,122

298,725

5,234

689,081

Fair value1

385,838

300,675

5,052

691,565

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 �
Fair values are based on cash flows discounted using Korean won currency note yield in the same credit grade with the Company(AA+), and borrowing rate quoted by People’s 

Bank of China and others.

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

 

Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

Minimum lease 

payments

2,481

3,195

Future finance 

costs

321

121

Present 

 value

2,160

3,074

Minimum lease 

payments

2,481

5,676

Future finance 

costs

503

442

Present value 

1,978

5,234

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

17.  Provisions 

Changes in the carrying amount of provisions for the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2011, are as follows:

Beginning balance

	A dditions

	U sed amount

	R eversals

Ending balance

	L ess : current portion

Total

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

9,543

16,042

(8,334)

(4,045)

13,206

(1,943)

11,263

 

Warranty 2

6,743

9,394

(509)

(4,045)

    11,583

(320)

    11,263

 

Sales returns 1

        2,800

6,648

(7,825)

     -

     1,623

(1,623)

     -

2012
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Beginning balance

	A dditions

	U sed amount

	R eversals

Ending balance

	L ess : current portion

Ending balance

(in millions of Korean won)  

Total

4,949

17,681

(13,087)

     -

9,543

(7,229)

2,314

 

Warranty 2

2,127

9,003

(4,387)

     -

    6,743

(4,429)

    2,314

 

Sales returns 1

         2,822

8,678

(8,700)

     -

     2,800

(2,800)

     -

2011

18.  Defined benefit liability

The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

Present value of obligations1

Fair value of plan assets

Liability in the statement of financial position

December 31, 2011
253,396

(192,619)

60,777

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
The present value of retirement benefit obligations is net of existing contributions to the National  Pension Plan of ￦945 million as of December 31, 2012 (2011: ￦979 million). 

December 31, 2012
367,567

(261,666)

105,901

1 
Sales return provisions have been accrued for the estimated sales return determined based on historical experience.

2� 
Warranty provisions have been accrued for the estimated warranty service costs to be incurred based on the terms of warranty and historical experience. Further, the Company 

purchased insurance policies to meet such obligations.

The amounts recognized in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Current service cost1

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Total, included in employee benefit expenses

2012
51,746

12,093

(7,475)

56,364

2011
42,145

8,629

(6,764)

44,010

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
The above amounts excluded ￦1,224 million (2011: ￦582 million) of expenses capitalized to construction in progress and development costs.

Severance costs recognized for defined contribution plan for the year ended December 31, 2012, amounted to ￦951 million 
(2011: ￦522 million).

The amounts recognized in the statement of income for the years ended December 31, 2012  and 2011, are as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Total

2012
38,603

18,712

57,315

2011
29,994

14,538

44,532

(in millions of Korean won) 
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Actuarial gains and losses recognized as other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Actuarial losses before tax

Income tax effect

Actuarial losses after tax

2012
(62,237)

15,062

(47,175)

2011
(53,541)

12,957

(40,584)

(in millions of Korean won) 

As of December 31, 2012, ￦111,892 million (2011: ￦64,717 million) of accumulated actuarial losses are included in other com-
prehensive income. 

Changes in the carrying amount of defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Beginning balance

	T ransfer in

	C urrent service cost

	I nterest expense

	A ctuarial losses (before tax)

	 Benefits paid

	E xchange differences

Ending balance

2012
253,396 

2,019 

52,970 

12,093 

62,304 

(15,550)

335 

367,567 

2011
162,363

886

42,727

8,629

53,926

(15,437)

302

253,396

(in millions of Korean won) 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Beginning balance

	T ransfer in   

	E xpected return on plan assets

	A ctuarial gains/(losses) (before tax)

	E mployer contributions

	 Benefits paid

Ending balance

2012
192,619 

- 

7,475 

67 

70,000 

(8,495)

261,666 

2011
154,227

430

6,764

385

40,000

(9,187)

192,619

(in millions of Korean won) 

The actual return on plan assets for the year ended December 31, 2012, was ￦7,542 million (2011: ￦7,149 million).

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets

Future salary increase

December 31, 2012
3.7% 

3.9%

5.1%

December 31, 2011
4.9%

4.3%

4.8%

(in millions of Korean won) 
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Discount rate:

	I ncrease(decrease) of defined benefit obligations

Increase by 1%

(35,748)

Decrease by 1%

42,495

(in millions of Korean won) 

The sensitivity analysis for changes in key actuarial assumptions is as follows:

Equity instruments

Time deposits

Insurance contracts with guaranteed yield

Total 

Amount

36,128

88,858

136,680

261,666

Proportion

14%

34%

52%

100%

Amount

35,973

66,377

90,269

192,619

Proportion

19%

34%

47%

100%

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Plan assets consist of:

The amounts of experience adjustments on the defined benefit obligations and the plan assets are as follows:

 

Present value of defined  benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Deficit in the plan

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities

Experience adjustments on plan assets

December, 31

2012

367,567

(21,666)

105,901

(13,616)

67

December, 31

2011

253,396

(192,619)

60,777

(25,232)

385

December, 31

2010

162,363

(154,227)

8,136

(20,393)

(1,002)

December, 31

2009

219,256

(164,867)

54,389

(4,674)

2,068

(in millions of Korean won) 

19.  Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of:

Advances from customers

Dividends payable

Withholding

Unearned revenues

Others

Total

December 31, 2012
37,457

1,115

44,968

12,248

56,819

152,607

December 31, 2011
21,718

1,143

44,993

12,398

55,516

135,768

(in millions of Korean won) 
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20.  Commitments and contingencies

(1) �The Parent Company and the newly established company, LG Hausys Ltd., are jointly liable for the obligations outstanding as 
of April 1, 2009, the spin-off date.

(2) �As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company has been provided with guarantees from the Seoul Guarantee 
Insurance for the execution of supply contracts.

(3) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has provided one blank promissory note to the Korea National Oil Corporation 
as collateral in relation to petroleum import surcharges.  

(4) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company and certain overseas subsidiaries have various specific line of credit agree-
ments with several financial institutions, as follows: The Company also entered into credit line agreements with other finan-
cial institutions relating to trade finance and import/export amounting to ￦200,000 million and US$ 410 million. 

Classification

Limit of bank overdraft

Limit of the letter of credit

Limit of discount of notes from export

Limit of guaranteed payments in other 

	 foreign currency  

Limit of loan arrangements

 

 

KRW

104,000

64,000

- 

- 

 

- 

 

 

USD

50

247

1,454

5 

- 

 

 

USD

125

5

- 

-  

1,247

 

 

CNY

210

- 

- 

-  

3,932

 

 

EUR

15

- 

- 

-  

3

 

 

INR

685

675

- 

-  

1,895

 

 

PLN

32

- 

- 

-  

20

The Company

 

Certain Overseas Subsidiaries

(unit: Korean won in millions, foreign currencies in millions)

(5) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has B2B purchase arrangements with several financial institutions amount to 
￦270,000 million.

(6) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company and certain overseas subsidiaries have been named as a plaintiff in 2 and 20 
nine legal actions involving ￦200 million and ￦6,999 million in claims, respectively, and as a defendant in six and two legal 
actions with ￦1,598 million and ￦161 million in claims, respectively.  The ultimate outcome of these cases cannot be deter-
mined at the reporting date.

(7) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company and certain overseas subsidiaries have been investigated by U.S. Department 
of Justice in relation to price fixing of small secondary batteries. However, this case would not have a material effect on its 
consolidated financial statements.

(8) �As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has technology license agreements with STYRON EUROPE GmbH and other 
companies for the production of Polycarbonate products. Further, the Company has entered into manufacture and produc-
tion technical contracts with Exxon Mobile and others.

(9) �The Parent Company has entered into a license agreement with LG Corp. to use trademarks on the products that the 
Company manufactures and sells, and on the services the Company provides in relation to its business.
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(in millions of Korean won) 

Guarantor 

 

The Parent 

Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Guarantee beneficiary 

LG Chem (Nanjing) Information & Electronics Materials Co., Ltd.

"

LG Chem Poland Sp. z o.o.

LG Chem Europe GmbH

LG Chem Michigan, Inc.

"

"

"

LG Chem Power, Inc.

Total

 

Outstanding

loan amount
 64,821 

 32,411 

 9,325 

- 

 26,778 

 64,266 

 28,920 

 - 

- 

 226,521 

 

Amount of

guarantee
 64,821 

 32,411 

 18,107 

 4,249 

 26,778 

 64,266 

 42,844 

 21,422 

- 

 274,898 

 

Financial 

 institution
HSBC 

Bank of America 

Nordea Bank

Shinhan Bank

Bank of America

Mizuho Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui bank

JP Morgan

Comerica Bank

2012

(10)� As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has a long-term purchase contract for certain raw materials and the supplier 
has made US$ 132 million of credit guarantee contract with financial institutions. Further, as of December 31, 2012, the 
Parent Company has a contract of US$ 3 million and US$ 80 million guarantees with financial institutions in regard to a 
delivery contract for certain products and a purchase contract for certain raw materials,  respectively.

(11)� As of December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has guaranteed the repayment of various obligations of its subsidiaries and 
associates. The outstanding balance of such guarantees as of December 31, 2012, amounts to US$ 235 million, EUR 3 mil-
lion and PLN 52 million (total equivalent to ￦274,898 million) (2011: US$ 214 million, EUR 3 million and PLN 52 million, total 
equivalent to ￦268,650 million).  Details of guarantees provided as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won) 

Guarantor 

The Parent 

Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Guarantee beneficiary 

LG Chem (Nanjing) Information & Electronics Materials Co., Ltd.

"

"

LG Chem Poland Sp. z o.o.

LG Chem Europe GmbH

LG Chem Michigan, Inc.

"

"

"

LG Chem Power, Inc.

Total

 

Outstanding

loan amount
33,430

  45,999

  34,499

9,836

-

28,833

34,599

 23,066

-

-

210,262

 

Amount of

guarantee
33,430

45,999

34,499

17,610

4,482

28,833

69,198

23,066

-

11,533

268,650

 

Financial 

 institution
Bank of China

HSBC

Bank of America 

Nordea Bank

ShinHan Bank

Bank of America

Mizuho Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui bank

JP Morgan

Comerica Bank

2011

(12) Capital expenditure contracted for as of the reporting date but not yet incurred is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2011
1,182,391

(in millions of Korean won) 

December 31, 2012
1,066,350



71Financial Statements

21.  Equity

Changes in share capital and share premium are as follows:

 

 

Number of shares

7,628,921

7,628,921

7,628,921

January 1, 2011

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2012

 

 

Number of shares

66,271,100

66,271,100

66,271,100

 

 

Amount

331,356

331,356

331,356

 

 

Amount

38,144

38,144

38,144

Share premium

897,424

897,424

897,424

Ordinary shares Preferred shares

(in millions of Korean won) 

Changes in treasury shares are as follows:

 

 

Preferred shares 

5,519

-

5,519

-

5,519

 

January 1, 2011

Purchase of treasury shares

December 31, 2011

Purchase of treasury shares

December 31, 2012

 

 

Ordinary shares 

359,781

3

359,784

6

359,790

Carrying amount 

15,484

-

  15,484

-

  15,484

Gain on sale of treasury 

shares

13,855

-

  13,855

-

  13,855

Number of shares

(in millions of Korean won) 

The Company intends to sell its treasury shares in the near future.

22.  Retained earnings

Details of retained earnings are as follows:

Legal reserve 1

Discretionary reserve 2

Unappropriated retained earnings

Total

December 31, 2012
260,113

7,107,800

1,836,790

9,204,703

December 31, 2011
212,843

5,444,028

2,396,436

8,053,307

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 �
The Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea requires the Company to appropriate an amount equal to a minimum of 10% of its cash dividends as a legal reserve until such 

reserve equals 50% of its paid-in capital. This reserve is not available for the payment of cash dividends, but may be transferred to common stock or used to reduce accumulated 

deficit, if any.
2� �
Pursuant to the Special Tax Treatment Control Law, the Company is required to appropriate, as a reserve for business rationalization, a portion of retained earnings equal to tax 

reductions arising from investment and other tax credits. This reserve may be distributed as dividends after reversal.
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23.  Other components of equity

Details of other components of equity are as follows:

Treasury shares (Note 21)

Capital transactions within the Company 1

Total

December 31, 2012
(15,484)

(215)

(15,699)

December 31, 2011
(15,484)

(215)

(15,699)

(in millions of Korean won) 

1
Included gain(loss) from transactions with non-controlling interests and other reserves of subsidiaries net of deferred taxes.

24.  Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Wages and salaries

Pension costs (Note 18)

Welfare expense 

Travel expense

Water & utilities

Packaging expense

Rental expense

Commission expense

Depreciation (Note 13)

Advertising expense

Freight expense

Training expense

Amortization (Note 14)

Sample expense

Others

Total

2012
264,145

18,712

68,832

29,641

20,693

4,783

91,932

186,763

54,980

20,330

374,598

12,250

12,805

13,321

       223,835

1,397,620

2011
253,053

14,538

57,269

23,007

18,225

4,522

93,913

178,577

48,451

18,378

332,550

11,329

10,846

8,406

       188,909

    1,261,973

(in millions of Korean won) 
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25.  Expenses by nature

Expenses that are recorded by function as cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses in the statements of 
income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of:

Changes in inventories

Raw materials and consumables used

Purchase of merchandise

Employee benefit expense (Note 26)

Advertising expense

Transportation expense

Service fees

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Operating lease payments

Other expenses

Total

2012
60,472

15,806,300

821,842

984,353

21,551

401,676

286,012

873,538

46,495

2,050,457

21,352,696

2011
(220,617)

15,103,836

868,358

892,083

19,379

357,081

271,187

756,668

43,061

1,765,799

19,856,835

(in millions of Korean won) 

26.  Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries 

Pension costs – Defined benefit plan (Note 18)

Pension costs – Defined contribution plan (Note 18)

Others

Total

2012
838,078

56,364

951 

88,960

984,353

2011
776,297 

44,010 

522 

71,254 

892,083 

(in millions of Korean won) 
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27.  Finance income and expense

Details of finance income and expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Finance income

	I nterest income 1

	 Dividend income

	 Foreign exchange gain 

	G ain on foreign currency translation

	G ain on settlement of trading derivatives

	G ain on settlement of hedging derivatives

	G ain on valuation of trading derivatives

Total

Financial expense

	I nterest expense 2

	 Foreign exchange loss

	L oss on foreign exchange translations

	L oss on settlement of trading derivatives

	O thers

Total

2012

 30,099 

 157 

 41,268 

 15,828 

 10,286 

- 

 2,352 

 99,990 

 72,992 

 66,757 

 9,021 

 5,168 

- 

 153,938 

2011

27,393

159

93,108

28,785

36,500

8,914

-

194,859

67,131

75,851

8,994

65,931

2

217,909

(in millions of Korean won) 

Bank deposits

Other loans and receivables 

Total

2012
29,187

912

30,099

2011
26,534

859

27,393

(in millions of Korean won) 

2
Details of interest expense are as follows:

1 
Details of interest income are as follows:

Interest on bank overdraft and borrowings

Interest on finance lease liabilities

Interest on debentures

Other interest expenses

Capitalized interest for qualifying assets 

Total

2012
 61,593 

 502 

 23,876 

 17,286 

(30,265)

 72,992 

2011
51,921

669

8,512

28,584

(22,555)

67,131

(in millions of Korean won) 
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28.  Other non-operating income

Details of other non-operating income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows: 

Foreign exchange gain

Gain on foreign currency translation

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of intangible assets

Others

Total

2012
301,291 

33,551 

4,967 

64 

31,980 

371,853 

2011
385,512

21,585

    2,286

-

43,361

452,744

(in millions of Korean won) 

29.  Other non-operating expenses

Detail of other non-operating expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Foreign exchange loss

Loss on foreign currency translation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Donations

Others

Total

2012
290,694

30,639

5,514

1,046

2,102

24,326

5,829

360,150

2011
398,986

23,302

6,652

10

-

24,420

13,750

467,120

(in millions of Korean won) 

30.  Income taxes

Details of income tax expense are as follows:

Current tax on profit for the year

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Deferred tax

Current tax charged directly to equity

Income tax expense

2012
320,315

(25,026)

63,803

359,092

15,061

374,153

2011
561,514

(6,153) 

58,610   

613,971 

12,957

626,928

(in millions of Korean won) 
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The income taxes charged directly to other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won) 

Current tax

	A ctuarial loss on defined benefit liability

Deferred tax

	O ther consolidated comprehensive income

	A ctuarial loss on defined benefit liability

	C ash flow hedges

	C urrency translation differences

Total

2012

15,061 

- 

(128)

286 

42 

200 

2011

12,957 

 

 (6)

-

(946)

 (325)

(1,277)

The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows: 

 

Defined benefit liability 

Plan assets

Reserve for research and human resources development

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Property, plant and equipment 

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures1

Accrued income

Others

Deferred tax charged directly to equity

Tax credits carryforwards

Tax loss carryforwards

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

 

 

Beginning  

balance

 46,139

(46,139)

(94,380)

3,742

46,047

(14,974)

(447)

31,126

(28,886)

(30)

-

803

(28,113)

 

 

 

 

Other comprehensive 

income

-

-

-

-

- 

-

-

-

-

200

-

-

200

 

 

 

 

Profit for  

the year

26,692

(16,487)

  (87,120)  

         (871)   

17,354

9,245

(1,293)

  (13,820)

(66,300)

-

-

2,497

(63,803)

 

 

 

 

Exchange

differences

-

-

-

(51)

(1,005)

 -

-

156

(900)

(191)

-

(94)

(1,185)

 

Ending  

balance

72,831

(62,626)

(181,500)

2,820

62,396

(5,729)

(1,740)

17,462

(96,086)

(21)

-

3,206

(92,901)

 

 

Increase (Decrease)

2012

(in millions of Korean won)
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Ending  

balance

46,139

(46,139)

(94,380)

3,742

46,047

(14,974) 

(447) 

31,126

(28,886)

(30)

-

803

(28,113)

2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Defined benefit liability

Plan assets

Reserve for research and human resources development

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures1

Accrued income

Others

Deferred tax charged directly to equity

Tax credits carryforwards

Tax loss carryforwards

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

 

 

Beginning  

balance

 26,697

(31,904)

(59,562)

7,240 

35,322

 (3,390)

(954) 

47,485 

   20,934

1,247

7,525

1,334

31,040

 

 

 

 

Other comprehensive 

income

-

-

-

-

-

 -

-

-

-

(1,277)

-

-

(1,277)

 

 

 

 

Profit for  

the year

19,442  

(14,235)

(34,818)

(3,416)

9,656

(11,584)

506

(16,105) 

(50,554)

-

(7,525)

(531)

(58,610)

 

 

 

 

Exchange

differences

-

-

-

(82)

1,069

 -

1

(254)

734

-

-

-

734

 

 

Increase (Decrease)

1�
Deferred tax liabilities of ￦3,136 million (2011: ￦12,041million) for the accumulated temporary differences of ￦147,916 million (2011: ￦176,571 million) relating to unremitted 

earnings of certain subsidiaries have not been recognized as such amounts are reinvested permanently.
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Profit attributable to ordinary shares1

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding2

Basic earnings per ordinary share (in won) 

2012
1,339,211

65,911,316 

20,318  

2011
1,915,945

65,911,319 

29,069 

(in millions of Korean won) 

The reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit is as follows:

Realization of the future tax benefits related to the deferred tax assets is dependent on many factors, including the Company’s 
ability to generate taxable income within the period during which the temporary differences reverse, the outlook of the eco-
nomic environment, and the overall future industry outlook. Management periodically considers these factors in reaching its 
conclusion. The Company did not recognize deferred income tax assets of ￦21,138 million (2011: ￦16,578 million) for the tax 
loss carryforwards of ￦69,730 million (2011: ￦53,649 million).

31.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Parent Company by the weighted aver-
age number of shares in issue excluding shares purchased by the Parent Company and held as treasury shares. As of the 
reporting date, the Parent Company has no potential ordinary shares. Preferred shares have a right to participate in the profits 
of the Parent Company. These participation rights have been considered in presenting the EPS for ordinary shares and pre-
ferred shares.

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Parent Company for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, is 
computed as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated based on applicable tax rate 1

Tax adjustments

	I ncome not subject to tax

	E xpenses not deductible for tax purposes

	�U nrecognized deferred income tax for temporary differences in the current year

	T ax credit

	E ffect from change of tax rate

	O thers

	I ncome tax expense

	E ffective tax rate (income tax expense/profit before income tax)

2012
1,880,498 

453,143 

(8)

10,255 

(117)

(93,209)

467 

3,622 

374,153 

19.90% 

2011
2,796,598

705,160

(9,780)

22,222

(504)

(111,419)

5,180

16,069

626,928 

22.42%

(in millions of Korean won) 

1
The weighted average applicable tax rate on profit before income tax for the year ended December 31, 2012, is 24.09% (2011: 25.21%).
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Profit attributable to preferred shares1

Weighted average number of preferred shares outstanding2

Basic earnings per preferred share (in won) 

2012
155,276

7,623,402 

20,368 

2011
221,981

7,623,402 

29,118 

(in millions of Korean won) 

1
Profit attributable to ordinary and preferred shares are as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Parent Company 

	O rdinary shares dividends (A)

	 Preferred shares dividends (B)

Undistributed earnings for the year

	U ndistributed earnings available for ordinary shares (C)

	U ndistributed earnings available for preferred shares (D) 

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shares (A+C)

Profit for the year attributable to preferred shares (B+D)

2012
1,494,487

263,645

30,875 

1,199,967

1,075,566

124,401

1,339,211

155,276

2011
2,137,926 

263,645 

30,875 

1,843,406 

1,652,300

191,106 

1,915,945 

221,981 

(in millions of Korean won) 

2
Weighted average numbers of shares are calculated as follows:

Ordinary shares 

Beginning

Purchase of treasury shares

Total

Period 

2012. 1. 1 ~ 2012.12.31

2012.12.31 ~2012.12.31

Number of shares 

65,911,316 

(6)

Number of days 

366

1

Number of  

shares x days

24,123,541,656

(6)

24,123,541,650

2012

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding: 24,123,541,650 / 366 = 65,911,316 shares

Preferred shares 

Beginning

Total

Period 

2012. 1. 1 ~ 2012.12.31

Number of shares 

7,623,402

 

Number of days 

366

Number of  

shares x days

2,790,165,132

2,790,165,132

2012

Weighted average number of preferred shares outstanding: 2,790,165,132 / 366 = 7,623,402 shares
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Ordinary shares 

Beginning

Purchase of treasury shares

Total

Period 

2011. 1. 1 ~ 2011.12.31

2011.12.31 ~2011.12.31

Number of shares 

65,911,319 

(3)

Number of days 

365

1

Number of  

shares x days

24,057,631,435

(3)

24,057,631,432

2011

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding: 24,057,631,432 / 365 = 65,911,319 shares

Preferred shares 

Beginning

Total

Period 

2011. 1. 1 ~ 2011.12.31

Number of shares 

7,623,402

  

Number of days 

365

Number of  

shares x days

2,782,541,730

2,782,541,730

2011

Weighted average number of preferred shares outstanding: 2,782,541,730 / 365 = 7,623,402 shares

There were no dilutive potential outstanding ordinary shares at the reporting date. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share for 
profit attributable to owners of the Parent Company is identical to basic earnings per share.

32.  Dividends

Details of dividends are as follows:

Number of shares entitled to dividends: shares issued and outstanding  

	 (par value per share: ￦5,000)

	O rdinary shares

	 Preferred shares

Dividend per share (in won)

	O rdinary shares: cash

	 Preferred shares: cash

Cash dividends to distribute (in millions of Korean won)

	O rdinary shares

	 Preferred shares

2012

65,911,310

7,623,402 

 4,000 (80%)

 4,050 (81%)

     263,645

30,875

 294,520

2011

65,911,316

7,623,402 

 4,000 (80%)

 4,050 (81%)

     263,645

30,875

 294,520
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Dividend payout ratios for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows: 

Dividends (A)

Profit for the year Aattributable to owners of the Parent Company (B)

Dividend payout ratio (A/B)

2012
     294,520

1,494,487

19.71%

2011
     294,520

2,137,926

13.78%

(in millions of Korean won) 

Dividend yield ratios for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows: 

Dividend per share (A)

Market value at the end of year (B)

Dividend yield ratio (A/B)

Ordinary shares

  4,000

330,000

1.21%

Preferred Shares

 4,050

102,000

3.97%

Ordinary shares 

  4,000

317,500

1.26%

Preferred Shares

 4,050

107,500

3.77%

2012 2011

(in Korean won) 

33.  Related party transactions

Significant transactions, which occurred in the ordinary course of business with related parties for the years ended December 
31, 2012 and 2011, and the related account balances as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are summarized as follows:

Entities with significant influence over the Company1

Associates and joint ventures

Key management

Others2

Total

Sales

12

115,670 

- 

30,521 

146,203 

Purchases

54,844

185,712

38,261

926,762

1,205,579

Sales

11

94,337

-

22,208

116,556

Purchases

46,427

193,163

51,021

849,276

1,139,887

2012 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

Entities with significant influence over the Company1

Associates and joint ventures

Key management

Others2

Total

Receivables

6,948 

29,609 

- 

36,963 

73,520 

Payables

1,456

22,334

48,781

194,727

267,298

Receivables

6,432

23,604

-

32,607

62,643

Payables

5,284

28,345

65,201

164,223

263,053

2012 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
The largest shareholder of the Company is LG Corp., which owns 33.53% of the Company’s ordinary shares (Note 1). 

2 
Includes LG Corp.’s subsidiaries.
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Compensation for key management of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, consists of:

Wages and salaries

Pension costs

Other long-term employee benefits

Total

2012
36,909

1,352

-

38,261

2011
 35,895

2,638

12,488

51,021

(in millions of Korean won) 

Key management includes directors and audit committee members having duties and responsibilities over planning, opera-
tions and controlling of the Company’s business activities. 

The receivables from related parties are mainly from sales transactions. The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no 
interest. There are no provisions held against receivables from related parties.

Details of the guarantees provided by the Company for related parties at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 20.

34.  Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation between operating profit and net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities for the years ended December 
31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

	 Depreciation

	A mortization

	 Pension costs

	 Finance income

	 Financial expense

	 Foreign exchange differences 

	G ain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

	L oss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

	I mpairment loss on property, plant and equipment

	G ain on disposal of intangible assets

	L oss on disposal of intangible assets

	O ther expenses

	I nventories

	T rade receivables

	O ther receivables

	S ettlement of derivatives

	T rade payables

	O ther payables

	 Defined benefit liability

	O ther cash flows from operations

Cash generated from operations

2012
1,880,498

854,512

19,026

56,364

(93,306)

116,294

(60,963)

(4,967)

5,514

2,102

(64)

1,046

13,497

(220,875)

(119,851)

(21,244)

5,118

92,830

(161,401)

(75,035)

(18,736)

2,270,359

2011
2,796,598

740,987

15,681

44,010

(123,046)

165,359

8,365

(2,286)

6,652

-

-

10

(10,165)

(275,593)

(533,618)

(36,467)

(27,237)

172,451

105,722

(45,794)

(15,723)

2,985,906

(in millions of Korean won) 
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The principal non-cash transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Transfer of construction-in-progress 

Transfer of machinery-in-transit 

Reclassification of long-term borrowings into current maturities 

Gain on valuation of derivatives recognized as other comprehensive income

2012
1,702,867

367,134

136,910

527

2011
1,340,674

145,854

378,045

4,682

(in millions of Korean won) 

35.  Segment information 

(1) General information about the Company’s reportable segments is as follows:

Segment
Petrochemicals  
 

Information & Electronic Materials 
Batteries 

Common and others

Products or services
ABS, PC, EP, PE, PP, Acrylic, Alcohol, SAP, PVC, 
Synthetic rubber, Specialty resin, BPA, Ethylene, 
Propylene and others 
Polarizers, 3D FPR and others 
Portable batteries and batteries for vehicles 

General management, sales and R&D

Major customers
LG International Corp., LG Electronics Inc., Daewoo 
Electronics Inc., National Plastic Co. Ltd., Youl Chon Chemical 
Co. Ltd., OCI Company Co. Ltd., Mitsui & Co. Ltd., and others
LG Display Co., LG Electronics Inc., and others
LG Electronics Inc., Nokia Corp., Apple Inc., Hewlett-Packard 
Co. and others

(2) The segment information on revenue and profit and loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

2012

(in millions of Korean won) 

Information & Electronic 
Materials

3,451,499
180,782

3,270,717
435,645

13,703
19,979

195,235
1,583

89,215
73,389

426,555

Petro -  
Chemicals

17,579,443
65,160

17,514,283
1,436,172

80,612
117,785
450,792

9,269
176,063
184,786

1,466,771

Common and  
others4

24,033
24,033

-
(277)

434
(743)

802
-

(2,805)
194

(2,097)

Batteries 

2,478,926
907

2,478,019
38,783

5,241
16,917

226,709
1,568

109,380
101,781
(10,731)

Total 

23,533,901
270,882

23,263,019
1,910,323

99,990
153,938
873,538

12,420
371,853
360,150

1,880,498

 

Total segment revenue
Inter-segment revenue1

Revenue from external customers2

Operating profit (loss)3

Finance income2 
Financial expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
Share of the profit of associates and  joint ventures
Other non-operating income
Other non-operating expenses
Profit (loss) before tax
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December 31, 2012 and 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Petro -  
Chemicals

17,324,733
59,385

17,265,348
2,329,058

152,139
165,187
419,431

11,039
253,677
254,274

2,389,076

Information & Electronic 
Materials

3,343,219
201,537

3,141,682
374,347

30,939
36,294

157,546
3,038

92,892
95,836

353,222

Common and  
others4

1,343
1,343

-
(2,171)
(5,501)
(1,011)

1,479
39

(934)
626

(8,457)

Batteries 

2,268,563
-

2,268,563
117,524

17,282
17,439

178,212
1,150

107,109
116,384

62,757

Total 

22,937,858
262,265

22,675,593
2,818,758

194,859
217,909
756,668

15,266
452,744
467,120

2,796,598

2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length.

2 
Revenue from external customers consists of sales of goods. Interest income and dividend income are included in finance income.

3 
Management assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of operating profit of segment.

4 
Common and other segments include operating segments not qualifying as a reportable segment, supporting divisions as well as R&D divisions.

 

Total segment revenue
Inter-segment revenue1

Revenue from external customers2

Operating profit (loss)3

Finance income2 
Financial expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
Share of the profit of associates and  joint ventures
Other non-operating income
Other non-operating expenses
Profit (loss) before tax

 

Total assets for the segment 1

Investments in associates and joint 	

	 ventures

Total liabilities for the segment1

Petro -  

Chemicals

8,569,342

  169,529  

2,678,198

Information & 

Electronic Materials

2,790,309

- 

597,202

Common and others 

2,138,825

221,329 

1,437,885

Batteries 

3,082,677

14,210 

1,102,513

Total 

16,581,153

405,068 

5,815,798

December 31, 2012

(in millions of Korean won) 

 

Total assets for the segment 1

Investments in associates and joint 	

	 ventures

Total liabilities for the segment1

Petro -  

Chemicals

7,792,664

95,334 

2,833,012

Information & 

Electronic Materials

2,287,111

- 

419,535

Common and others 

2,338,217

218,864 

1,191,537

Batteries 

2,867,562

14,210 

1,133,791

Total 

15,285,554

328,408 

5,577,875

December 31, 2011

(in millions of Korean won) 

1�
Assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with those in the financial statements and allocated on the basis of segment operation. Corporate assets and liabilities 

as of December 31, 2011, were reallocated in line with the current year allocation method.

(3) The segment information on assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:
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(4) The external sales by geographical segments from continuing operations are as follows:

(5) There is no external customer attributing to more than 10% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

36.  Approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, were approved by the Board of Directors on 
January 29, 2013.

Korea1

China 

South East Asia 

America

Western Europe

Others

Eliminations

Total

2012
10,067,791

9,802,912

1,694,865

1,752,895

879,755

3,015,968

(3,951,167)

23,263,019

2011
9,876,440

9,639,702

1,464,064

1,577,783

695,723

2,910,444

(3,488,563)

22,675,593

(in millions of Korean won) 

1 
Domestic sales include the exports made through local letters of credit.



86

To the representative director LG Chem, Ltd.

We have reviewed the accompanying management’s report on the operations of the Internal Accounting Control System (“IACS”) of 
LG Chem, Ltd. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2012. The Company’s management is responsible for designing and operating 
IACS and for its assessment of the effectiveness of IACS. Our responsibility is to review the management’s report on the operations 
of the IACS and issue a report based on our review. The management’s report on the operations of the IACS of the Company states 
that “based on its assessment of the operations of the IACS as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s IACS has been designed and is 
operating effectively as of December 31, 2012, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS standards established by the 
Internal Accounting Control System Operations Committee (IACSOC) of the Korea Listed Companies Association.”

Our review was conducted in accordance with the IACS review standards established by the Korean Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform, in all material respects, the review of management’s report on the 
operations of the IACS to obtain a lower level of assurance than an audit. A review is to obtain an understanding of a company’s IACS 
and consists principally of inquiries of management and, when deemed necessary, a limited inspection of underlying documents, 
which is substantially less in scope than an audit. 

A company’s IACS is a system to monitor and operate those policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
international financial reporting standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (“Korean IFRS”). Because of its inherent limitations, 
IACS may not prevent or detect a material misstatement of the financial statements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effective-
ness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that management’s report on the operations of the 
IACS, referred to above, is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS standards established by 
IACSOC.

Our review is based on the Company’s IACS as of December 31, 2012, and we did not review management’s assessment of its IACS 
subsequent to December 31, 2012. This report has been prepared pursuant to the Acts on External Audit for Stock Companies in 
Korea and may not be appropriate for other purposes or for other users.

March 7, 2013

Report of Independent Accountants' Review of Internal 
Accounting Control System

LG Chem Annual Report 2012
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To the Board of Directors and Audit Committee of LG Chem, Ltd.

I, as the Internal Accounting Control Officer (“IACO”) of LG Chem, Ltd. (“the Company”), assessed the status of the design and oper-
ations of the Company’s internal accounting control system (“IACS”) for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

The Company’s management including IACO is responsible for designing and operating IACS. I, as the IACO, assessed whether the 
IACS has been effectively designed and is operating to prevent and detect any error or fraud which may cause any misstatement of 
the financial statements, for the purpose of establishing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes. I, as the IACO, applied the IACS standard for the assessment of design and operations of the IACS.

Based on the assessment on the operations of the IACS, the Company’s IACS has been effectively designed and is operating as of 
December 31, 2012, in all material respects, in accordance with the IACS standards.

January 25, 2013

Suk-Jeh Cho, 
Internal Accounting Control System Officer

Jin-Soo Park, 
Chief Executive Officer

Report on the operations of the internal
accounting control system

Financial Statements
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Board of Directors

Young-Su Kwon

President, LG Chem, Ltd.

Jin-Kon Kim

Professor, Chemical Engineering, Pohang 

University of Science and Technology

Jang-Joo Kim

Professor, Department of Materials Science and 

Engineering, Seoul National University

Jin-Soo Park

President & CEO, LG Chem, Ltd.

Jun-Ho Cho

President & CEO, LG Corp.

1
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4

5

Young-Ki Park

President, LG Chem, Ltd.

 Se-Jin Kim

President, Korea Asset Pricing

Seung-Mo Oh

Professor, School of Chemical and Biological 

Engineering, Seoul National University

Peter Bahnsuk Kim

Chairman of the Board, LG Chem, Ltd.

Il-Jin Park

President, IJ International

Ki-Myoung Nam

Professor, Law School, Chungnam National 

University
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2013 IR Plan

Thank you for your interest in LG Chem. For the latest business and investor information, 

visit our website at www.lgchem.com.

Capability Development 

 

 

Content Development 

 

 

 

Special Events 

 

Activities Targeting Foreign Investors 

 

 

Shareholders’ General Meeting  

and Public Disclosure 

 

Year round 

 

 

Year round 

 

 

 

Year round 

Quarterly 

Year round

Year round 

Year round 

Year round 

Ongoing basis

Year round 

 

 

• �Provide IR feedback to each business unit 

(performance and marketing data)

• �Facilitate seamless collaboration between related business units 

(business and promotion)

• Provide in-depth reviews and in-house input on major issues 

• Provide real-time industry information updates 

• Provide consistent and systematic responses to frequently asked questions 

• �Provide financial statements for subsidiaries on a consolidated basis 

(sales, ordinary income, debt-to-equity ratio information)

• Provide greater investor access to top management 

• Hold regular meetings to review business performance

• Host events at Korean and overseas production sites

• Hold overseas roadshows 7-8 times a year 

• Attend conferences in Korea and overseas 8-9 times a year 

• Increase frequency of conference calls with prospective overseas investors 

• Provide timely updates and new content on our English website

• �Deepen team expertise on matters related to the shareholders’  

general meeting and public disclosure

• Improve processes for effective public disclosure 

• Update internal measures to prevent incorrect disclosures

PLANS Frequency



LG Twin Towers, 20, Yeouido-dong, Yeongdeungpo-gu, Seoul 150-721, Korea

Tel_ 82-2-3773-7227 Corporate Website_ www.lgchem.com




